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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Post E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading;
(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and
assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FE®RE

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Company carried out some acquisitions of
subsidiaries. Currently, there are totally three reportable business
segments in the Group and as follows:

On-line shopping and Provision of on-line shopping,

advertising advertising and media
related services
Swimwear Manufacturing and trading of

high-end swimwear and related
garment product

Apparel and related
accessories

Trading and retailing of apparel
and related accessories under
different brand names like

“Tonino Lamborghini”; “Cour
Carré”; "Gay Giano”; and “Due
G”

The Group's reportable business segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and a wide variety of services
to their customers. These three business segments are managed
separately and each by a key management team because each
business requires different business models, technologies, skill sets,
and marketing strategies.

At an extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of the
Company held on 19 December 2011, a special resolution was
passed to change the name of the Company from China Post
E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited to Luxey International (Holdings)
Limited. Up to the date of this report, the application for the change
of name is still in progress. We also believe that the change of the
Company name will better reflect the core business of the Group
in the future and provide the Company with a fresh new corporate
image as well as an new identity which is in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FE®RE

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Notwithstanding the tough economic environment in the world in
2011, the Group is facing a difficult year. Yet, through expansion
in acquisitions, the Group recorded a total turnover (including
continuing and discontinued operations) of approximately
HK$254.5 million in 2011 (HK$97.9 million in 2010), representing
an approximately 160% increment. The significant increase in
turnover for the year is mainly attributable to 2 new operating
segments which are Swimwear segment and the Apparel and
related accessories segment. The turnover generated from
Swimwear and Apparel and related accessories segments for the
year were approximately HK$53.9 million and HK$92.1 million
respectively.

The gross profit (including continuing and discontinued operations)
of approximately HK$91.9 million was recorded by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$22.5 million)
representing an approximately 308% increment.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company (including
continuing and discontinued operations) was approximately
HK$338.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
513% compared with that of in 2010 (2010: HK$55.2 million).
The deterioration was mainly attributable to (i) the impairment of
goodwill arising from acquisition of Easy Time Trading Limited and
iKanTV Limited of approximately HK$250.2 million and HK$10.6
million respectively (2010: HK$Nil); and (ii) loss for the year from
discontinued operation of HK$47.2 million (2010: profit from
discontinued operation of HK$4.4 million).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FE®RE

OUTLOOK

Global economic conditions are still full of uncertainties, while the
Company believes in an enormous economic growth potential in
Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") market
which is catalyzed by the continuing growth in domestic demand
despite the keen competition among other rivalries in the retail
market. We can also position ourselves to be a marketer coupling
and making full use of both the on-line and off-line marketing
strategies to promote our businesses in those three core business
segments that can create synergies among each others.

In the upcoming years, the Company has a faith to continue to
create value to its shareholders through the best effort of our
management teams within the Group. We are always hoping that
we can turnaround the Group’s financial position and steer it into
the rightful direction in the near future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to our shareholders of their tremendous
support and to our management and staff of their dedication and
contribution in the past year. One of the Group's key objectives is to
create and increase shareholders’ wealth. To this end, the Group's
focus is, endeavoring its very best, to seek long term growth in our
core businesses while maintaining stable growth in the industry.

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Chairman

29 March 2012
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EERGAREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Chi Yuen, Joseph, aged 41, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company in April 2008 and a chairman of
the Company in June 2008. Mr. Lau has about 10 years’ experience
in corporate finance transactions and investments, and managerial
position involving listed and non-listed companies in Hong Kong.
He obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration (Finance)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1995 and Bachelor of
Electronic Engineering in Computer (Hons) from the City University
of Hong Kong in 1993. He is an executive director of China Outdoor
Media Group Limited, which is a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. CHUNG Man Wai, aged 41, was appointed as a Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in April 2008 and an executive
director of the Company in October 2008. He holds a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree from the University of Hong
Kong and a Master of Science Degree in Financial Management
from the University of London. Mr. Chung is also a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in August 2007,
Mr. Chung held senior corporate finance and accounting positions
in a listed company and in the New World Group and was an
internal auditor in a financial institution.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EERSAREEREBEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. LEE Chung Mong, John, aged 53, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He obtained Ph.D. Degree in Computer Science from the University
of Minnesota, USA in 1989. In the same year, he was appointed
as Associate, Research Staff in the Institute of Systems Science
at National University of Singapore. In 1999, he was awarded
a Teaching Excellence Appreciation Award by the Dean of the
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and was elevated as a Senior Member of the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. He is now the chairman and
chief executive officer of Asia Vision Technology Ltd. He is currently
the independent non-executive director of Ruifeng Petroleum
Chemical Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. TAM Wing Kin, aged 46, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008. He
is an independent non-executive director of Fittec International
Group Limited. He is also a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a Certified Public Accountant (Practising).
Previously, Mr. Tam had worked in one of the leading international
accountancy firms and several listed companies in Hong Kong. He
has over 20 years of experience in accounting field.

Mr. FUNG Chan Man, Alex, aged 49, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April
2008. He obtained a BSc (Hons) degree in Electrical Engineering
from University of Bath (UK) in 1986 and subsequently a MBA
degree from Heriot Watt University (UK). Mr. Fung has about 15
years working experience in financial market and corporate finance

activities in both Hong Kong and China.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EERGAREEEREE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Kai Sing, Billy, aged 44, is the Chief Operating Officer
of a major subsidiary of the Company. He joined the Group in
October 2009. Mr. Chan has over 10 years of working experiences
in communication industry, and has held senior positions in
communication and IT enterprises. He was the Chief Consultant
of Internet Products and the Chief Consultant of Business Sales of
New World Telecommunications Limited, and the Sale department
head of PCCW Limited. Before his joining, he was the General
Manager of New World iMedia Solutions Limited.

Ms. NG Ka Sim, aged 39, is the Group Financial Controller of the
Company. She joined the Group in November 2011. Ms. Ng has
extensive experience in auditing and financial management. She
had worked in multinational accounting firms and has over 10
years' experience in auditing. She is a member of CPA Australia
and a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Ng obtained a Bachelor of
Accounting in Australia.

Ms. CHAN Hiu Kwan, aged 27, is the Company Secretary and
assistant finance manager of the Company. She joined the Group in
May 2008. Ms. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 6 January 2011, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Big Good Management Limited (“Big Good"”), an
independent third party, to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Easy Time Trading Limited (“Easy Time"). The total consideration of
HK$390,000,000 is satisfied by (i) as to a sum of HK$260,000,000
by way of issue of a total of 1,733,333,333 convertible non-
voting preference shares at an issue price of HK$0.15 per share
to Big Good upon completion of the transaction; (ii) as to a sum
of HK$50,000,000 (subject to adjustment) by the way of issue
of promissory notes to Big Good upon completion; and (iii) as to
the balance of HK$80,000,000 by the way of issue of a total of
533,333,333 consideration shares at an issue price of HK$0.15 per
share to Big Good upon completion and satisfaction of Big Good'’s
obligations under Tax Liability Adjudication and Profit Guarantee on
the Contingent Consideration Payment Date. The completion took
place on 31 March 2011. Subsequently, Tax Liability Adjudication
and Profit Guarantee had been fulfilled pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement and relevant Consideration Shares had been
issued on 28 December 2011. Details of the acquisition are set
out in a circular issued by the Company on 11 March 2011 and
announcement dated 31 March 2011. Further details are set out in

note 35(a) to the financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWHE DM

On 1 April 2011, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Datamax Limited and Capital Master Holdings
Limited (the “Vendors”), both are independent third parties, to
acquire 51% of the issued share capital of Charmston (Holdings)
Limited (“Charmston”). The total consideration of HK$42,500,000
is satisfied by (i) as to HK$12,500,000 payable in cash upon signing
of the sale and purchase agreement; (ii) as to HK$2,500,000
payable by cash upon completion of the transaction; (iii) as to
HK$12,500,000 to be satisfied by procuring the Company to
issue to Vendors the convertible bonds in the principal amount
of HK$12,500,000 upon completion of the transaction; and (iv)
as to the balance of HK$15,000,000 to be satisfied by procuring
the Company to issue to Vendors of a total of 53,956,835
Consideration shares at an issue price of HK$0.278 per share upon
completion of the transaction. The completion took place on 30
June 2011. Details of the acquisition are set out in a circular issued
by the Company on 13 June 2011 and announcement dated 30
June 2011. Further details are set out in note 35(b) to the financial
statements.

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 27 September 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Marks Silver Limited, an independent
third party, to dispose of the entire issued share capital of a wholly-
owned subsidiary, Opcom Holdings (BVI) Limited, at a consideration
of HK$45,000,000. Details of the disposal are set out in a circular
issued by the Company on 23 November 2011. The completion
took place on 9 December 2011 and the Group discontinued its
ceramic blanks and ferrules business. Details of the disposal are set
out in notes 11 and 36 to the financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES

On 17 May 2011, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with the SpringTree Special Opportunities Fund, LP
("SpringTree”) pursuant to which SpringTree agreed to pay an
aggregate amount of up to HK$165,000,000 to the Company
in tranches and the Company agreed to issue such number of
shares at the subscription price up to the equivalent amount of
HK$165,000,000 to SpringTree. On 10 August 2011, 11,236,249
ordinary shares credited as fully paid had been issued as a non-
refundable commencement fee to SpringTree. The first tranche of
HK$4,000,000 was paid to the Company on 11 August 2011 and
the corresponding subscription shares were issued on 8 September
2011. On 22 September 2011, the subscription agreement was
terminated by SpringTree and the Company by mutual consent.
Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
22 September 2011.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following connected transactions
during the year and up to the date of this report:

(a) Sales of Tonino Lamborghini products

During the year, the Group sold Tonino Lamborghini
products of approximately HK$993,000 and HK$322,000 to
Bestime (Macau) Limited and Mix N Match (Macau) Limited
respectively.

REBRA

RZZE——FHA TR KNAFESpringTree
Special Opportunities Fund, LP ([SpringTree ] )
T RE W B - SpringTreeE A E 2 #L[A)
KRR XN & H A8 % #165,000,0007T 2
HIE - MARBEREEREERSpringTree
1T BB B 165,000,000t BB A
BB zZBRHm - R_E—FEN\A+HB BN
SpringTree®£1711,236,2490 A BRFI1ESILR 2 &
BIRIEARBIE A - SpringTreeBE R T ——
FNAT—BRARBLZ E I RERIBBE
4,000,0007T A RBROHENR T ——F
NANBET - RZE——FNAZ+=H %
R EEARNT K SpringTree B AR B2 T IA
BIE - E—FFBHRARBR T ——FN
AZ+ZBz2Rfie

AEERAFEAMNBEAREAH LD FTL
TIRER 5

(a) $§ETonino LamborghiniZE

KEEAN AEEEHRIMEER OB A
RAarkEiEE ORF) BRAFHEEL
75 993,0007T K& 4 #5322,0007T 2 Tonino
LamborghiniZE & °
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(b) Lease of 8 self-operated retail stores

Easy Harvest International Limited had signed 8 leasing
agreements of self-operated retailed stores on behalf of
the Group. During the year, the total rental payments of
these 8 self-operated retailed stores were approximately
HK$6,610,000.

Mr. Lee Tang Kit, Philip, is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of his beneficial interest in Charmston; Bestime
(Macau) Limited; Mix N Match (Macau) Limited and Easy Harvest
International Limited and he is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Accordingly, the sale of Tonino Lamborghini products
and lease of 8 self-operated retail stores constituted connected
transactions of the Company under the Rules Governing of the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”).

Except for the aforesaid, during the year and up to the date of this
report, no other connected transactions were entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a connected person as
defined under GEM Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded a
total turnover (including continuing and discontinued operations)
of approximately HK$254,547,000 representing an increase of
approximately 160% from approximately HK$97,907,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2010. The significant increase in turnover
for the year is mainly attributable from 2 new operating segments
which are the manufacturing and trading of high-end swimwear
and related garment products segment (“Swimwear”) and the
trading and retail of apparel and related accessories segment
("Apparel and related accessories”). The turnover generated from
Swimwear and Apparel and related accessories segments for the
year were approximately HK$53,929,000 and HK$92,091,000
respectively.

(b) HESKBERESE
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The gross profit (including continuing and discontinued operations)
of approximately HK$91,854,000 was recorded by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$22,505,000).

The loss attributable to owners of the Company (including
continuing and discontinued operations) was approximately
HK$338,527,000, representing an increase of approximately
513% compared with that of in 2010 (2010: HK$55,196,000).
The deterioration was mainly attributable to (i) the impairment
of goodwill arising from acquisition of Easy Time and iKanTV
Limited of approximately HK$250,206,000 and HK$10,600,000
respectively (2010: HK$Nil); and (ii) loss for the year from
discontinued operation of HK$47,240,000 (2010: profit from
discontinued operation of HK$4,387,000).

OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Group has taken effective
measures to control its operating costs. This is the objective of
the Group to adopt stringent cost control and maintain a thin but
effective overhead structure. The Group is optimistic in enjoying a
fruitful harvest and satisfying an anticipated growth of production
capacity in the foreseeable future.

The Group will also be prudently in expanding its apparel retails
network in a pragmatic manner in the coming years by opening
more stores and distribution outlets. We also believe that it is in the
Group's best interest to negotiate to more apparel brands in future
in order to build up its own brand portfolio to secure its market
position and to maintain its competitive edges and well diversified

product mix in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
("PRC").
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$716,052,000 (2010: HK$262,594,000). As
at 31 December 2011, the Group had short term borrowings of
approximately HK$69,636,000 (2010: HK$12,400,000) and long
term borrowings of approximately HK$40,302,000 (2010: HK$Nil).
The significant increase of total borrowings was mainly due to (i)
issuance of promissory note of principal amount of HK$50,000,000
for the acquisition of Easy Time; and (ii) issuance of convertible
bonds of principal amount of HK$12,500,000 for the acquisition
of Charmston during the year. As at 31 December 2011, the
Group had sound financial position with bank and cash balances
of approximately HK$78,516,000 (2010: HK$40,603,000). The
Group has a current ratio of approximately 1.41 comparing to
that of 2.58 as at 31 December 2010. As at 31 December 2011,
the Group's gearing ratio of 22% was calculated as net debt
divided by total equity (2010: 12%). Net debt is calculated as total
liabilities (including current and non-current liabilities as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total equity represents the equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars and Renminbi, the Group's exposure to exchange rate risk
is limited. It is the Group's treasury policy to manage its foreign
currency exposure only when its potential financial impact is
material to the Group. The Group will continue to monitor its
foreign exchange position and, if necessary, utilise hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 31 March 2011, the Company issued 1,733,333,333 new
convertible non-voting preference shares (par value HK$0.15 each)
as part of the consideration for the acquisition of Easy Time. On
18 April 2011, 380,000,000 convertible non-voting preference
shares (par value HK$0.15 each) were converted into 380,000,000
new ordinary shares of the Company (par value HK$0.05 each).
On 30 June 2011, the Company issued 53,956,835 new ordinary
shares (par value HK$0.05 each) as part of the consideration for
the acquisition of Charmston. On 10 August 2011, the Company
issued 11,236,249 new ordinary shares (par value HK$0.05 each)
to SpringTree as commencement fee shares. On 5 September 2011,
50,000,000 convertible non-voting preference shares (par value
HK$0.15 each) were converted into 50,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company (par value HK$0.05 each). On 8 September
2011, the Company issued 30,511,060 new ordinary shares (par
value HK$0.05 each) at HK$4,000,000 to generate the working
capital of the Group. On 28 December 2011, the Company issued
533,333,333 new ordinary shares (par value HK$0.05 each) as part
of the consideration for the acquisition of Easy Time.

As at 31 December 2011, the total number of issued ordinary
shares were 3,097,093,296 of HK$0.05 each (At 31 December
2010: 2,038,055,819) and total number of issued convertible non-
voting preference shares were 1,303,333,333 of HK$0.15 each (At
31 December 2010: nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not have any significant investments as at 31
December 2011.

HEDGING POLICY

The Group does not have any material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange or interest rates. Therefore, no hedging measures have
been taken at present.
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1,733,333,333/k AT iR mIT R EE LR (B
H{EE¥0.157T) fERWEEEasy Timez AR
B-RZFT——FWMA+/\H " 380,000,000
AR I EREE L IR (TR EEER0.157T)
B 8 # 45380,000,000 A AR FT LB (&
IRE(EEE0.057) A RN T ——F X
B = B 31753,956,8350% #1 & i@ ik (& AR @
BEEB0.0SI)IEANBEE ZHBHRE -
—E——F A\A+H KAQFMASpringTreeE 1T
11,236,249 3 & @ Ax (S AR E (B & ¥0.057T)
EARBBRARG R=2FE——FNLARH"
50,000,000R% AJ 32 g 1T RAEE LR (BIREE
7EH50.1570 ) B 82 450,000,000/% A& A &)
B (BREEBK0.05T) - R-T——FAN
AN\R - RAREE1730,511,0600% #1 & @A (&
BEEBBOSTT)UNEEAREB EEES
B #4,000,000 R - E——F+-A-+N
H A A% 17533,333,333F LB (BK
E B %0.057T) fE AU EEEasy TimeZ AR
{g o

R-_ZTE——F+-_A=Z+—HB ARFE
BROLBERBEASREMEAEK0OSTZ
3,097,093296f (R —ZE—ZF+-A=+—
H:2,038,055,819/%) k2 &7 A IR | 1%
ERELIRZBEASREMEERISTTZ
1,303,333,333W (R =ZE—ZF+=-A=+—
H:E)-

EXRE

RZZE——F+A=+—H KTEEWET
MERKRE -

B ER

7K 52 1B 3 4 {F fa] B KB 2% g R O B LB
It R B B SR ER A AR S b 4 A



THEE (EKR) ARAR —TB——5FH§

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWHE DM

CREDIT POLICY

The credit terms given to customers are generally based on the
financial strengths of individual customers. The Group generally
allows an average credit term of 30 to 75 days to its trade
customers.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 575 full time employees
compared with that of 369 in 2010. The staff costs, including
directors’ remuneration, were approximately HK$66,651,000
(2010: HK$19,445,000). The Group offers a comprehensive
remuneration package and benefits to its full time employees
in compliance with the regulations in Hong Kong and the
PRC respectively, including medical scheme, provident fund or
retirement fund. In addition, the Group adopts a share option
scheme for eligible employees (including Directors) and consultants
to provide incentives to participants for their contributions and
continuing efforts to promote the interests of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, (i) the Group has pledged property, plant
and equipment with the net carrying amount of approximately
HK$229,000 (2010: HK$Nil) to secure the finance lease payables
of approximately HK$255,000 (2010: HK$NIl); and (i) the Group
has pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$6,248,000 (2010:
HK$2,000,000) to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

CHANGE OF NAME

At an extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of the
Company held on 19 December 2011, a special resolution was
passed to change the name of the Company from China Post
E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited to Luxey International (Holdings)
Limited. The application for change of name is still in progress.
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PROSPECTS

Following the successful acquisitions of Easy Time and Charmston,
the Company is gradually transformed and diversified itself into
a garment and apparel retail focused group with both internet
and physical shops sales platforms. The Company undertook a
very careful strategic review and consideration of all its existing
businesses and together with the potential revenue and income
contributions on both the swimwear trading business and apparel
retails business, and which will become the key business drivers
of the Company. The on-line shopping and advertising business
segment will fully assist and create synergy on the retailing,
promotion and advertising for these business segments in the
internet platform in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group will continuously strive for, with its best effort, creating
value to its shareholders. It is the core business strategy for the
Group to grow in both organic and inorganic ways. The Group
will proactively utilize and mobilize its operating and financial
resources to assist the expansion and growth for its swimwear
business segment and apparel and related accessories business
segment. As such, the Company will always look for any potential
business acquisitions or business cooperation with reputable
apparel brands. Despite the volatile economic conditions in the
United States of America (“US") and in some European countries,
the economic and business environments in both Hong Kong and
the PRC will generally remain stable with steady growth especially
in the retail sector. The economic growth driver will be weighted
more on the domestic demand in the PRC. In view of such robust
economic growth, the Company, in the long run, will continue to
formulate its operating strategy by considering to set up flagship
retails outlets in the major cities in the PRC for its two apparel
and related accessories business segments, especially for the high
ended fashion market. The growth momentum in Hong Kong
is undoubtedly benefited from the recent and future economic
conditions in the PRC. Hence, the Company is optimistic about
the prospect of its on-line shopping and advertising business and
its apparel and related accessories business in Hong Kong and the
PRC.
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Despite the global economy facing new challenges especially the
European debt crisis, and looking forward, the Group is optimistic
on the prospectus and the growth momentum on the retail market
in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Therefore, we have confident that
the Group will continue to be formulate its operating strategies in
order to capture the economic benefits by the growth in domestic
consumptions stimulated by the strong anticipated GDP growth
in the PRC and in Hong Kong. As such, for our two retail focused
business segments, the apparel and related accessories business
segment and the on-line shopping and advertising business
segment, we will deploy our resources effectively to seize the
business opportunities and secure our major future income sources.

As for our swimwear business segment, the Group is now
diversifying its customers based from the US and Europe to the
emerging and dynamic markets like the Middle East and Asian
countries in order to diversify the risk and impact from the European
market. We also believe that these emerging markets are fast-
growing and their international trade and capital growth will be the
mega trend in the next decade.

The development of our on-line shopping and advertising business
segment enters into a mature stage. In the coming year, our
group purchase web-site, Babybamboo, keeps on expanding and
collaborates with several strategic partners, such as mobile app
developer, for further development, especially focusing on the food
& beverage industry. We will strengthen our competitive edges
through assisting the marketing promotion for our clients and, for
instance, by providing mobile app, included Android and 10S, to our
merchants. With the increasing market share, we strongly believe
there will be a significant sales enhancement in the coming year.
We will also provide multi-media and marketing services in order to
fulfill the market need for our clients.

For the online services business, we have already equipped
ourselves with an information system for logistics and stock
management. Strategic partnership and solid facilities would an
advantage us to further expand in future.
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

The Group's operations, turnover and assets are wholly located
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China. An analysis of
the Group's performance for the year by business segments and
consolidated trading results of the Group by geographical segments
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 45 to 50 of this annual

report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year (2010: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in notes 32 to

the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

Pursuant to the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands
and the Articles of Association of the Company, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders, subject to a
solvency test. At 31 December 2011, in the opinion of the Directors,
the Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders
amount to approximately HK$128,925,000 (2010: HK$Nil),
representing the aggregate of share premium of approximately
HK$595,332,000 (2010: HK$193,678,000) and accumulated losses
of approximately HK$466,407,000 (2010: HK$195,030,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There are no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Group during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$41,000 (2010: HK$Nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.
BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Particulars of borrowings and pledge of assets of the Group as at 31
December 2011 are set out in notes 24, 26, 27, 28 and 29 to the

financial statements.
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 34(a) to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:
Executive Directors

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Chung Man Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors

Lee Chung Mong, John
Tam Wing Kin
Fung Chan Man, Alex

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles, Chung Man Wai
and Lee Chung Mong, John shall retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Board confirmed that the Company has received, from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Company considers that they are independent under Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Directors of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short position of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the share capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the required standards of dealings by Directors of the Company
as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were
as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares

EERFETRAERRS #HBEROR
BRER B

RZE——F+_A=+—B BERARQT
FETHRABEARRSETAAEEZR (F
ERBHFRHEGN ([FHFREBEEH]) EXV
) 2IRA - EkhO REEFET - BEEERA
RARIBIBEZES R EKOIEI2HEEFEZ
ErftziEm RAR AR RAI IR E TR R
FSAES6TEFTIM AN RIEFTETEE 2
TEEEMNEARRREBBEZIMBRA
A (TBERFr) ) 2 Em AR T -

() RERGZHFE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of Type of issued share
Name of Director Shares Nature of interest Interest capital (%)
HEBTRE
EspnE grig - 4= EEME HESER BHRBE DL (%)
(Note 2)
(Bit2)
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, 606,400,000 Interest of a controlled Corporate 19.58%
Joseph (“Mr. Lau”) (Note 1) corporation NS
BB EEE (Hfet1) XEHRAF#ER
(T2I5E41)
Notes: Bzt -

1. These shares are held by JL Investments Capital Limited, which
is wholly owned by Mr. Lau. Mr. Lau is therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares held by JL Investments Capital Limited.

2. The percentage of issued share capital had been arrived at on the

basis of a total of 3,097,093,296 ordinary shares in issue as at 31
December 2011.

1. ZEBRMHABABEEEZ2EHES ZIL Investments
Capital Limited#5 78 - B8 5e A 1A% R A IL
Investments Capital Limited Fff #35 B 10 2 #E 25

2. BEABRAZESLDERZ-ZZ——F+=
A =+—H#£3,097,093,296% B %17 & 38 i%
P2 BEAEETH -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age had any right to subscribe
for the Shares or any share of its associated corporations.

(iij) Short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

As at 31 December 2011,
positions in Shares or underlying Shares of equity derivatives of

none of the Directors had short

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

THEH (ZR) ARAR —TB——5FH§

BREXEEEIN R_Z——F+_A=+—
B EEFAARAETBTRAEMEEAR

ISR ETAAEEAE (& R ES LR ED
SEXVER) R R S ERES R
ERRARRRARERE S NS GO %3525
FEZERMzERIOAR  HIRBEEIER L

T8 Bl 55465567180 Me A A 7 & B < B
ZRERBOKE -
B EXFIBREEIN RZE——F+_A=+—

B REFHARAEIBTHRABRKERA
ZE B8R AT 2 F I EHE A ] A R
P tn s E AR B A B 2 (] At 2 #ER -

(i) RERBBRFAITLETRAZRGRIEER G
ZHRE

RZE——F+ZA=1+—H FEEH
BRRMDIARR B 2 RAHTET A2 HE
B HEEECARRRREBEESRPE
fRBIE336IEBFE 2 ELRMKE -

27



28 China Post E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2011

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

Substantial shareholders interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares

As at 31 December 2011, other than the interests of a Director or
chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the heading
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, the interests and short positions
of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares

FERRRROREBRO ZESZR XA

WoB——FE+=A=t—B BEX[EER
T BARA BRI ABRRG REEEZE
| — B SEAARTVTRABMES
MTFALRAR AR RABBR G B EE R
AK R AR ES RS D 336 AT B
2Bz RAR

() REGZHFE

Approximate
percentage of

Type of issued share
Name of Shareholder Number of Shares interest capital (%)
HEBITRAE
BRARE BoER EmEn BABE D (%)
(Note 4)
(Ki7#4)
JL Investments Capital Limited 606,400,000 Corporate 19.58%
(Note 1) NS
(B7a1)
Mr. Lau 606,400,000 Individual 19.58%
25 E @A
Senrigan Capital Group Limited on 292,000,000 Corporate 9.43%
behalf of Senrigan Master Fund (Note 2) NET!
Senrigan Capital Group Limited (Kiat2)
(£ % Senrigan Master Fund )
Big Good Management Limited 563,333,333 Corporate 18.19%
(Note 3) NS
(B73£3)
Mr. Ma Hoi Cheuk (“Mr. Ma") 563,333,333 Individual 18.19%
HelE ([HhE]) & A
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Notes: Kt -

1. see Note 1 on page 26 1. REB26EMFE1

2. These shares are held by Senrigan Capital Group Limited on behalf of 2. #&%ZR{H B Senrigan Capital Group Limited{ 3%
Senrigan Master Fund. Senrigan Master Fund# & ©

3. Big Good Management Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Ma who 3. Big Good Management Limitedf 5t £ 2
is deemed to be interested in underlying shares held by Big Good EwA ALt HEEWEKR A ABIg Good
Management Limited. Management LimitedFT 15 B 10 & # # ©

4. see Note 2 on page 26. 4. HE26BM2 -

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of (i) REEGRZELRGRELTETRZHEER G

equity derivatives of the Company ZIE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Shares Type of interest capital (%)
e BT
% A4 49
REREH ROEE RERER B2 (%)
(Note 1)
(Htat1)
Big Good Management Limited 1,103,333,333  Corporate 35.62%
(Notes2 & 3) A T&]
(Bi7#2k%3)
Mr. Ma 1,103,333,333 Individual 35.62%
BEAE A
Notes: et -
1. see Note 2 on page 26. 1. RE26EMF2 -
2. see Note 3 above. 2. R EHiFE3 -
3. Big Good Management Limited was the holder of 1,103,333,333 3. 1,103,333,333[R AT AR IR R IEESLARAR D
convertible non-voting preference shares which have no voting FIBig Good Management Limited# & + & #t
rights and are convertible into ordinary shares. et AT $E 40 5 5 A - I AR SR A
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(iii) Short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the
Directors of the Company were not aware of any other person
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT TO
SUBSCRIBE FOR EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2011 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has entered into
the following connected transactions during the year and up to the
date of this report:

(a) Sales of Tonino Lamborghini products
During the year, Bestime (H.K.) Limited, a non-wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company, entered into framework supply
agreements with each of Bestime (Macau) Limited and Mix

N Match (Macau) Limited to supply Tonino Lamborghini
products. For the year ended 31 December 2011,
approximately HK$993,000 and HK$322,000 products were
sold to Bestime (Macau) Limited and Mix N Match (Macau)
Limited respectively.
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(b) Lease of 8 self-operated retail stores

Easy Harvest International Limited had signed 8 leasing
agreements of self-operated retailed stores on behalf of the
Group and the Group has made the monthly rental payments
under those leasing agreements directly to the respective
landlords in the year. During the year, the total rental payments
of these 8 self-operated retailed stores were approximately
HK$6,610,000.

Mr. Lee Tang Kit, Philip, is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of his beneficial interest in Charmston (Holdings)
Limited; Bestime (Macau) Limited; Mix N Match (Macau)
Limited and Easy Harvest International Limited and he is also
a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Accordingly, the
sales of Tonino Lamborghini products and lease of 8 self-
operated retail stores constituted connected transactions of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2011 and up to the date of this report, no connected
transactions were entered into between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and a connected person as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s turnover and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the year is

as follows:

The largest customer ST

Five largest customers in aggregate AARFAE
The largest supplier BAHER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR ST

At no time during the year have the Directors, their respective
associates and any Shareholder (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of, as at 31 December 2011, any
business or interest of each Director, substantial shareholder and
management shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and
their respective associates that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any

such person has or may have with the Group.

FEEFRUES
REEREE Y T EES R EREREL 2
BERREEEROT

Percentage of
the Group’s total

EAEERAE2ADL
Turnover Purchases
BER *EH
13% -
27% -
- 13%
- 40%
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance for the Company. During the year, the Company is in
compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules
except provision A.4.1 of the CG Code as detailed below:

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and re-
election at Annual General Meeting of the Company in line with the
Company's Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. RSM Nelson Wheeler. A resolution will be

submitted to the annual general meeting to reappoint RSM Nelson
Wheeler as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintain high
standards of corporate governance for the Company. During the
year, the Company is in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) except provision A.4.1 of the CG Code as
detailed below:

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are
not appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and
re-election at Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Company
in line with the Company'’s Articles of Association (“Articles”). As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure the Company'’s corporate governance practices are
no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors of the Company have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Company throughout the

year ended 31 December 2011.

A}

REARERTA

>

& ([EF2 ) B RARARIMER
ER-FN ARFIDETEBME XM
[RAm gl ZERESF EHRR ([RIER EHR
D sIsrElc EXERTER TR ([XE
?ED HEBEEIBTAEAL VRN ¥
B

EE SKFEZ
¥

ﬁF>W

i DL\_

_|

SFRAMESCEALME

BBEEEERTAEALUE FERITEEFEU
FERPRME WARKIEE- B BULIFH
TEEWIIFANFERPZRME BEAETARR
ZHABERRAA ([AR ) EARRRRFBFK
2(RRBFRE]) FRERERE AL K
NARBREERME AR ARE 2B
ERERTBREEE RTINS HE -

EECEERS

AARERMN—EARERETEERS 2T
BSTE Z TR Z G TMER B R 8 8

F5.48E FES5.67IKFTIRE 2R PIZRLE L&A B
BERETHTERE REZE2E-_Z—F1+=

A=+ —HLFE NRARMBEECETH
MELZRHFERNRRIFAIRANBRESETT
BHRHZITRTH



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e dp A

The Company has adopted the same code of conduct for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the code of conduct by the
relevant employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board comprises five members and their positions, as at the
date of this report, are as follows:

Executive Directors
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph (Chairman)
Chung Man Wai (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Lee Chung Mong, John

Tam Wing Kin

Fung Chan Man, Alex

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors are
set out in the section of “Directors and Senior Management's
Biographies” on pages 9 to 11 of the annual report for year ended
31 December 2011. All Directors bona fide have exercised due
care, fiduciary duties to all the significant issues of the financial,
operational, compliance and risk management of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). Each Executive
Director has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to
hold his position in order to ensure that his fiduciary duties have
been carried out in an efficient and effective manner. None of the
members of the Board have, in any respect, related to each other in
any circumstances.
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The Board held a full board meeting for 23 times for the financial
year of 2011. Details of the attendance of the Board members are

BFEeRN T —FPHFESEMABIEES
R - AMESERE ZHEREFBD

as follows: ™

Executive Directors HITES Attendance
R E

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph 2EiR 23/23

Chung Man Wai R 23/23

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Lee Chung Mong, John FEHEIX 6/23

Tam Wing Kin L SLie 6/23

Fung Chan Man, Alex SR 6/23

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available to all
Directors for inspection. A draft of board minutes are circulated to
all Directors for their comment and approved as soon as practicable
after the board meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain independent
professional advisors if necessary. They also have unrestricted
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing Directors with board papers and related
materials and ensuring that board procedures are followed.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or Director arise, the matter is discussed in an actual
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest are
present at meeting dealing with conflict issues. Board committees,
including the Audit, Compensation, Finance and Nomination
Committees, all follow the applicable practices and procedures used
in board meetings for committee meetings.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In order to protect the interest of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), the Company appointed three Independent
Non-executive Directors with relevant and sufficient experience and
qualification to perform their duties. One of the three Independent
Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise,
which complies with the requirement of The GEM Listing Rules. The
three Independent Non-executive Directors declared and confirmed
with the Company on an annual basis of their independency with
the Group in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed and concluded that all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent in appearance and in
substance in view of the definition of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Independent Non-executive Directors do not hold any office
with any connected parties of the Company or have any financial
interests other than those directors’ remuneration as disclosed in
note 13 to the financial statement.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully recognizes that the respective role of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be distinct and
separated. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is the Chairman of the Company
and is responsible for leadership to the Board to ensure that the
Board work effectively and all important issues are discussed in a
timely manner while Chung Man Wai is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and is responsible for managing the business
of the Group and leading the management team to implement
strategies and objectives formulated by the Board. A clear division
of responsibilities at the Board level has been maintained to entail a
balance of power and authority.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT

Independent Non-executive Directors were not appointed for
specific terms, subject to re-election. Every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles, Chung Man Wai and
Lee Chung Mong, John shall retire by rotation at the AGM. All the
retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Company established Compensation Committee with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Compensation Committee comprises a majority
members of Independent Non-executive Directors.

At 31 December 2011, the Compensation Committee comprised
three Independent Non-executive Directors, Lee Chung Mong,
John, Tam Wing Kin, Fung Chan Man, Alex and one Executive
Director, Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Compensation Committee held two meetings during
the financial year of 2011. Details of the attendance of the
Compensation Committee meeting are as follows:

Committee members ZEERE
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph FE R
Lee Chung Mong, John FEHEIX
Tam Wing Kin e
Fung Chan Man, Alex Yt 3vg

RBABNFESANG EXERFHLKEANER
BFRELWERE-MAERFEFHATE
RNRBFE RS LBEE(T-

FMEES
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SEITARARRERE A BT LB
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FEZZBNIENTESETERX  BEE  BEX
M —2RTEERE R - BN AXETES T
o

FMZEen T —MBRFEEET-KE
Z-ABFNEZBE @R ZRELFEREHR
LIl

Attendance

R B

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ﬁ__\"ﬁﬁisAﬁﬂ:

The Compensation Committee proposed to the Chairman relating
to the remuneration of executive directors. The Compensation
Committee also recommended to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.

The director’s fee payable to him is determined by making reference
to his duties and responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing
market conditions, as approved by the Board in accordance with the
Company's remuneration policy pursuant to the authority given by
the Shareholders.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board, identifying individuals suitable and qualified to become
Board members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the election of, individuals nominated for directorship.
The Nomination Committee comprises at least three members, the
majority of whom shall be Independent Non-executive Directors.
The current members of the Nomination Committee are Lau Chi
Yuen, Joseph, Lee Chung Mong, John, Tam Wing Kin and Fung
Chan Man, Alex. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the Chairman of the
Committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the financial
year of 2011. Details of the attendance of the Nomination
Committee meeting are as follows:

Committee members ZEERE
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph ElESge
Lee Chung Mong, John FHKX
Tam Wing Kin B R
Fung Chan Man, Alex B
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FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a Finance Committee with written terms
of reference to review and approve banking facilities to be granted
or issued by the Company, provision of corporate guarantees by
the Company for its subsidiaries and opening of bank or securities
related accounts. The Finance Committee comprises at least three
members. The current members of the Finance Committee are Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph, Lee Chung Mong, John, Tam Wing Kin and Fung
Chan Man, Alex. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the Chairman of the
Committee.

The Finance Committee held one meeting during the financial
year of 2011. Details of the attendance of the Finance Committee
meeting are as follows:

Committee members ZEEHE
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph 2
Lee Chung Mong, John FHEIK
Tam Wing Kin B
Fung Chan Man, Alex I

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee is to communicate with the management
of the Company from time to time, including but not limited to
review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company, the effectiveness of its internal control systems, the
interim and annual results of the Company. The Audit Committee is
also responsible for considering the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor and reviewing the impairment
to its independency with any non-audit services performed by the
external auditor.

As at the date of this report, the members of Audit Committee,
which are all Independent Non-executive Directors, are Lee Chung
Mong, John, Tam Wing Kin and Fung Chan Man, Alex. Tam Wing
Kin is the Chairman of the Committee.
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The Audit Committee held five meetings during the financial
year of 2011. Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee

meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEgRE
Lee Chung Mong, John FHEK

Tam Wing Kin B R
Fung Chan Man, Alex TSI

The Company'’s audited annual results for the financial year ended

31 December 2010, unaudited first quarterly results for the three
months ended 31 March 2011, unaudited interim results for the
six months ended 30 June 2011 and unaudited third quarterly
results for the nine months ended 30 September 2011 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion
that the preparation of such results have been complied with the
applicable accounting standards. Audit Committee also reviewed
the Group’s internal control system.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the total fee paid/
payable in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
Company's external auditor is set out below:

Types of services AR 75 iR 4R
Audit services FEZIRTE
Other audit services Efih B R
Taxation fee Mm% E R
Non-audit services EEZR
Total st

FHEEZ (ER) GRAT —ZT——FFH
EREEBEN 2 ——HUHFEERITARE
o BEBERZESERIKELRREFE
m

Attendance
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INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Proper internal controls not only facilitate the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, ensuring compliance with laws and
regulations, but most importantly, help to manage risk exposure of
the Company. The Company is committed to the risk identification,
risk assessment, evaluation of internal control system and
monitoring of remediation plan to control deficiencies. The Audit
Committee has met with the management of the Company on a
regular basis to review the existing internal control practice.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance and prospects. It is also responsible for
preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group's financial position on a going concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. Management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to
discharge these responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 43 and 44.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information to
shareholders in a timely manner. Annual and interim reports offer
comprehensive operational and financial performance information
to shareholders and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to
exchange views directly with the Board. The Company regards the
AGM as an important event and all Directors, senior management
and external auditor make an effort to attend the AGM of the
Company to address shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders of
the Company are given a minimum of 21 days’ notice of the date
and venue of the AGM of the Company. The Company supports
the CG Code’s principle to encourage shareholders’ participation.
The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning
voting by poll under the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the poll
voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll
included in circulars to shareholders dispatched by the Company
where applicable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZEEMERS

RSM Nelson Wheeler
i EE (B8 SErESEBAT
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA POST E-COMMERCE (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Post E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 45 to 162, which comprise the consolidated and Company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group's results and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ma W sk

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat BT BT
(Restated)
(&71)
Continuing operations RFEKEXEK
Turnover S 6 164,398 6,231
Cost of sales and service rendered SHE R ARG R 2 B (78,095) (3,138)
Gross profit EX 86,303 3,093
Other income E bz 7 7,698 324
Impairment of goodwill EERE 19 (260,806) =
Impairment of available-for-sale AL ESREEZRE
financial assets 21 - (43,325)
Selling expenses HERM X (35,562) —
Administrative expenses THEHR (83,014) (22,210)
Other operating expenses Hg & s R (58) -
Loss from operations REEE (285,439) (62,118)
Finance costs BA TG A AR 9 (2,949) (442)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & BB A B E - 903
Loss before tax BRELAIE R (288,388) (61,657)
Income tax expense FrigHi & A 10 (2,587) -
Loss for the year from continuing RESELE XK~
operations FREE (290,975) (61,657)
Discontinued operation BRIEREER
(Loss)/profit for the year from REBRIEEEER 2
discontinued operation FA(EE)&mF 11 (47,240) 4,387

Loss for the year FRER 12 (338,215) (57,270)
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mE WK

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Loss from continuing
operations
(Loss)/profit from discontinued
operation

Loss attributable to owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests
Profit/(loss) from continuing
operations
Loss from discontinued
operation

Profit/(loss) attributable to
non-controlling interests

Loss per share
From continuing and discontinued
operations
— basic

— diluted

From continuing operations
— basic

— diluted

BE—F——F+=A=f—AULFE

THA LR :
ZN/NCIE 2SN
&5 18
KEERIEREEKLZ
(&18) 5

AREEB ARG EE

FEPE RS M 28
A, (E1E)
KEERIEREEKLZ
&5 18

IR S IR A
(E1#R)

BRER
KEFBERERIE
—&RK

—#E

—&ERK

s

Note
Bt

14

16(a)

16(a)

16(b)

16(b)

2011 2010
—E——F T —TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)

(&E751)

(291,287) (59,583)
(47,240) 4,387
(338,527) (55,196)

312 (2,074)

312 (2,074)
(338,215) (57,270)
HK(14.283) cents 1 HK(2.915) cents {1l
HK(14.298) cents &1l HK(2.915) cents (L
HK(12.290) cents ;&1 HK(3.147) cents {1l
HK(12.305) cents &1l HK(3.147) cents {1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mETHWHER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat BT BT
Loss for the year FRER (338,215) (57,270)
Other comprehensive income: Htt2mus :
Exchange differences on translating ~ #R B 5 INERS 2 [E 5 =58
foreign operations 1,741 1,335
Exchange differences reclassified to ~ RIEEHBARKENHEE
income statement on disposal of Wk 2 BEHZH
subsidiaries (4,855) -
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of EEYE BERRENESE
property, plant and equipment 2B (B4 8 (24,076)
Other comprehensive income BREBEEFRHEMEZEKE
for the year, net of tax 17 (3,106) (22,741)
Total comprehensive income FREEKZEE
for the year (341,321) (80,011)
Attributable to: THALEL:
Owners of the Company IN/NEIE F N (341,632) (77,937)
Non-controlling interests FEE R = 311 (2,074)

(341,321)

(80,011)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

At 31 December 2011 R-E——#F+_-_H=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F T —TF
Note HK$'000 HK$000
okza BT T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment M HWERERE 18 11,772 38,949
Long term prepayments REIFEI R 1,800 -
Goodwill EES 19 484,296 75,343
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 21 - =
Club debenture EMES 205 =
498,073 114,292

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 77,196 18,031
Trade and other receivables R E 5 Rk E AR 23 56,019 87,668
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 24 6,248 2,000
Bank and cash balances RITRIRe &7 24 78,516 40,603
217,979 148,302

Current liabilities nEAE
Trade and other payables B E S R EAMERER 25 71,375 20,113
Promissory notes AN ERE 26 12,400 12,400
Convertible bonds A RS 5 27 12,276 =
Bank and other loans RITREME K 28 44,895 =
Finance lease payables BB M ERNRIEA 29 65 -
Employee benefit obligations EBERAMEME 30 4,885 -
Current tax liabilities mEHIBEEE 8,933 24,879
154,829 57,392
Net current assets RBEEFRE 63,150 90,910
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAERB A EG 561,223 205,202
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB R R

At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——#E+_-_H=+—H

2011 2010
—E-—F —T-TF
Note HK$'000 HK$000
HaE B FT BT T
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Promissory notes QNS 26 40,112 =
Finance lease payables A& M & RN IR 29 190 —
Deferred tax liabilities BEMIBR G 37 225 6,869
40,527 6,869
NET ASSETS EEFE 520,696 198,333
Capital and reserves AR
Share capital [N 32 350,354 101,903
Reserves &t 33 164,301 101,725
Equity attributable to owners of the AR FHH A (L E=
Company 514,655 203,628
Non-controlling interests FEIERR 6,041 (5,295)
TOTAL EQUITY AR 520,696 198,333
Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2012. EEgN T _F=A-_t+hBE&EH-
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph Chung Man Wai
28R EX
Chairman Executive Director

1 HITEE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
5 %5 R A 3%

At 31 December 2011 R-E——#+-H=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZTF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
okza BT T BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZRE 20 391,060 10
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERT K e RE M U AR R
other receivables 23 350 6,037
Due from subsidiaries JFE Uk BT BB N =] FRIB 20 147,489 94,546
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE T 45,483 36,819
193,322 137,402
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FE =T & A I B JE < BR 3K 25 20,761 19,198
Due to subsidiaries A BT /B N Bl FRIE 20 13,944 843
Promissory notes AN EE 26 12,400 12,400
Convertible bonds AR E S 27 12,276 =
59,381 32,441
Net current assets REBEEEE 133,941 104,961
Total assets less current liabilities ZEZAERRE A G 525,001 104,971
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Promissory notes AN ERE 26 40,112 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 484,889 104,971
Capital and reserves RA R #E
Share capital [LEN 32 350,354 101,903
Reserves s 33 134,535 3,068
TOTAL EQUITY ERBEE 484,889 104,971
Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2012. EEeN T _F=AZ-thBESEHK-
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph Chung Man Wai
2E= EXE
Chairman Executive Director
e HiTEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BREZSH KRG ®E

For the year ended 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2010

Total comprehensive income for the year
Issue of shares on placement (note 22(b))
Share options lapsed during the year
Disposal of subsidiaries

Changes in equity for the year

At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011

Total comprehensive income for the year

Issue of new shares

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35)

Conversion of convertiole non-voting
preference shares into ordinary shares
(note 32(f)

Equity-settled share-based payments

Disposal of subsidiaries

Dividends paid to non-controling shareholders

Changes in equity for the year

At31 December 2011

R=2-F£--H

FhEAkELE
EERTRG (Hatsab)
EhEHBRE
HEMERA

FEREEY

RZE-ZETZAZT-BR
—3-—%--8

ERREhEAE

LTHRG

WEHEAA (#273)

HETARERZERRAL AR
(HE20)

NEREEZROAZRER
HENBAR
BRHERRRRE
FEREEY

RZE-—£1tZA=1-H

BE—F——F+-_H="1—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

—E——F5H

ARARAARSE
Plantand  Equity-settled
machinery  share-hased Capital
Share Share Translation revaluation payment redemption Convertible  Accumulated Non-controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  bond reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
NEREEZ
HER kit aER Ex TRRES 2R
R Rt Eifif REEHER fARER AEREE & 2ithR 2% B RH4E
(note32)  (note 33(ck)  (note 33l (note 33ch)  (note 3AcHi)  (hote 33(ch)  (note 33c)i)
(Bitz) (W) (Rasadin)  (Kasaeh)  (RE3)  (RE3)  (KEsa0h)
HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000
V-iava Vi ava BEFR ¥R E¥TT ¥R E¥FT E¥Tr FEFT FEFT BEFT
92903 166,678 1,690 B32145 12,809 150 = (711.910) 245,565 (3867) 241,6%
= = 133 (24,076) = = = (55,196) (77937) (2,074) (80,011)
9,000 27,000 = = = = = = 36,000 = 36,000
= = = = (8539 = = 8539 = = =
= = = = = = = = = 646 646
9,000 27,000 133 (24,076) (8539 = = 46,657) (41,937) (1428) (43,365)
101,903 193,678 3,05 19,169 4270 150 = (118567) 203,628 (5.295) 198,333
- - 3.113) 8 - - - (338,527) (341,632) 311 (341,321)
2,087 1913 = = = = = = 4,000 = 4,000
289,364 356,741 - - - - 1,190 - 647,295 11,183 658,478
(43,000) 43,000 = = = = = = = = =
- - - - 1,364 - - - 1,364 1312 2,676
= = = (19,169) = = = 19,169 = = =
- - - - - - - - - (1,470) (1,470)
28451 401,654 (3.113) (19,161) 1,364 = 1,190 (319,358) 311,027 11,336 32,363
350,354 595,332 (88) 8 5,634 150 1,190 (437,925) 514,655 6,041 520,696
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z _—F——F+=-H=+—HIFZF

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RE XK HELRKRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax

BB Al B3 18

FIATNIRR FEFRE

Adjustments for:

Finance costs BA TS AR

Interest income MEHKA

Depreciation e

Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE  BRE K& E
and equipment B

Impairment of available-for-sale AtEHESREEZRE
financial assets

Impairment of goodwill BB R E

Equity-settled share-based NEREE 2R RER
payments (NE7S

Allowance for inventories FEREE

Allowance for receivables JEE U5 AR TR 1

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A WS

Interest on promissory notes BEEMNZEEN S
written back

Interest on other loan written back % [E] & 4 & X F 8

Operating profit before EEESHBHI 2 KERF

working capital changes

Increase in long term prepayments = A8 {5 ZIE I N

Increase in inventories FELE N

Increase in trade and FEWE 5 K ELh BR )38 N
other receivables

FEHE 5 R E A BRFKIE AN,
other payables (R4

Increase in provision for employee {& 8 48 F| & 1T B & 18 11
benefit obligations

Increase/(decrease) in trade and

Cash used in operations KREMAZRE
Income tax paid EfFER
Net cash used in operating REEKFMAZREFH

activities

2011 2010
—g-—-5 —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT EETFT
(289,939) (53,221)
2,949 442
(18) (20)
20,703 9,226
24 =
- 43,325
260,806 =
2,676 =
5,786 4,808
44 5,461
- (903)
(248) (248)
(377) =
2,406 8,870
(1,800) =
(36,837) (3,604)
(31,062) (32,131)
28,594 (3,709)
174 =
(38,525) (30,574)
(3,849) =
(42,374) (30,574)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z —F——F+-HA=+—HI FF

2011 2010
—B——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFEBZHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank B IFIR1TF R L,
deposits (3G h0) 1,993 (2,000)
Interest received 2 UH B 18 20
Purchases of property, plant and BEMXE HWEREE
equipment (5,796) (1,591)
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWE  HE K& &XE
plant and equipment FriS 58 100 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) W EEMIE A &) (A72£35) 24,122 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEMBE AR (#iE36) 43,922 =
Net cash generated from/(used in) R&EEEHFE, (FTA)Z
investing activities BEFE 64,359 (3,571)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REFEZ2HESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BATIR D FT 1S K18 4,000 36,000
Repayment of finance lease payables f&iZ g & 7 & & (- 3k 18 (31) -
Finance lease charges paid ENHMERAERX 9 -
Bank and other loans raised EEERTREMER 6,462 —
Repayment of bank and other loans B2 R1T R E M E K (5,480) -
Net trust receipt loans raised EESERRBEERFE 10,687 -
Interest paid RN PR (540) (194)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B FEE R AR R AR B
shareholders (1,470) -
Net cash generated from RMETHREZ2RESFH
financing activities 13,619 35,806
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RekBREEHEEAZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS BmERE 35,604 1,661
Effect of foreign exchange INEERBE) s B
rate changes 2,309 1,969
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HHzHeRBESEEEH
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 40,603 36,973
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H#&ZHeRBEELEHEER
AT END OF YEAR 78,516 40,603
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND RERBEEEEBEZIM
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances FITRIRE&EF 78,516 40,603
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z _—F——F+=-H=+—HIFZF

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Room 702, 7th Floor, Goodluck Industrial Centre,
808 Lai Chi Kok Road, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
Company'’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the

financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations and
effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2011. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group's financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

—REH

AARDRASHESTMKIIZBR R
Al AR =R 2 H ik ACricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands e Zx A

TRLEXMHBRBBN E%’&ﬁl%&%

808%&%@1%43 DTIET02%E o AN A

PREBBERSMERAAE ([BEP] )
BIZEMR £ o

ARBB—HREERAF AN B AR
ZEBRBHN M HRRM 20

RAFI REEITEBYBREER

RAFE ANEECRABFTESTEA
S BERXBEHEIR _T——F—
A—BRia S FRER A REE
2 BBYBRELEN ([HEEMBHRESE
al]) (BREL ﬁﬁ“*&%ﬁﬁﬂ((%?ﬁﬂﬁ%
WEER])  BESEIRZRE) - KK
EZﬁ%ﬁaT&%&ﬂ‘%TZ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%#&%ﬁﬁlJ
BEYRAREE 2 GFBRARRAFE R
NEFEER CROBERE

ZER B (R R BR AR 2 R AR 1B 1) R AE U2 F T
BEP G HmE LD AEE BRI H %
EHABEMBREEN ZFE HRHKR
ARtz E e 2 e RE LT Y
HEEXE LM BEARABRERTE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 3R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_—F——F+=-H=+—HIFEZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEHEE
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance I EMBEHRERDIBIBEE SV B REER
with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong EBARGHRAUAURBEBMERIFAE
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules RAREIERZ S EMRBIREERRG
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Bl ER 2 BBERERE -

Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the I ERFRERERBE LK AERR I
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of HIRAFEARZBE RS EEELHE
plant and machinery. ale

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with METEEBMBRELEN M BRE
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and B AERETEERERMET -HIMEXK
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their EEAREAGBER 2 BRRPIED HE - 5
judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies. EMBRREERATE 2 BRE LM
The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant PO B TS SR 2 P s AN BB ©

to these financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to the
financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation PR EMBRREAEANEES S

of these financial statements are set out below. RS T o

(a) Consolidation (a) #&ERE
The consolidated financial statements include the BENBRRBERAARARAMER
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries AEBEET-A=+—HALLZHER
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over Ko MBRARREASEHEERE
which the Group has control. Control is the power to HIEH E RS 12l I B X B —
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity BER U RELEHER  UEHER
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence RERNZ R EANEEEESHE
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently PEHIER @ EBRKAIITESKA R
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing M BERIAEIFERETZE-

whether the Group has control.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z _—F——F+=-H=+—HIFZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESHEE(Z)

(a) Consolidation (Continued) (a) #ARE (&

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (i)
the Company's share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of

the Company.

MEAREZEFNEEREAEE A
HERE AR LEEFERLEZBE
(EIRSR= PN

REMEB A R SR S 2 E B8
ARz BmHEOEERELFEE
RIRE N %M B AR EMIRE A
BE(INAN QB B XM B AR EEF
BEREZNBARBR 2 EAHE
AR AR 48R RAHEE SRR E F =
#e

SERNAANZRS EBRRAER
BRI T B IER 5 A BEE
AR AEAE L ERE BARER
BRNTUHE  HEEE WBAR
TEHBASELBE UBREL
EERH T BHEE K-

FFERAES IR AR R E&Z KA
BHAENME QRS - IR RS
Ty AR & B ISR 3R B AR SR e 2 S &
mAEMRZIBEBEAINR A WER
ERiGa2EKRERA  FFERER
2N RAFE MK E R N2 RS
R I ERRRERRFER A
Z BRI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 3R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TESHEHE (&)

(a) Consolidation (Continued) (a) #=AKRE (&

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

B G HIEE I i s AR oR H R B AL
BERSEEM2EREEE BT A
ZUNCIE ZE PN E 2L S

i3 XS CANYNCIP Y PN R
ZHEBEAEZEDINEEZIH A
ROREAEEASDETZEBA
RS ERFIFERERNREELRL
B AR BRE M B A R ER R
HE - JFERERBBANAERED
NHEBREXIFEREZE BEER
BEER AARFEAADNE-

RARRZHBARRAKRRH B AR Z
RETRRAEHRREBRRES
fR-MBARREIBRARAIZE K
MW B EEARR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R & M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_—F——F+=-H=+—HIFZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESHEE(Z)

(b) XBEHREE

(b) Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition

to calculate the goodwill.

AREE AW ERERE G AT
B2 M B R R SRR - B A A T3 P
EEEWBEHZAFE BT
BATRE FELZBENREAR
EFt & WBHEKARBREKAE
A N FE RS B RE AR A8 7 S o TR R
BEMBARZARNEERAE:
BIRERWE R A EFE-

Wi B A TR Hh AN 2 B FE A B B 2 R A
BRI BERBBZRAFFEZIER]
FIVERGE - R R FEAE AT BRI B E M
BEZAPFEBHKRERA 2 ZH
TR A B AR RN R B EhH
{8 Y 8 W et o

HROBEBOETTZEB A KAID
FA B QR Z s R R A 5
ZRFEEHNFE MBLEEZE
BN A B NTER - A FEG A
EWERAAGTERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 3R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z—F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TESHEHE (&)

(b) XBEHREE(F)

(b) Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis
as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
(x) below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

HEMSHAZMBARZERZE
BEEHERNEMEEKRAER ()
AR ERE)  AIREMEEKE
BRcEBDRELHCHA 2
1% & 5 T 78 2 MR R B R 3R o

HESFFETRENALESHX
1B 5 B U R RE R (B B R B SR 3
EITRE R o BB TY IR BN R F
HEBEFE - BEREBRZGE
TRBEEGFBERMEE (x) Pt 2 H
BEZFENEHER BB ZBES
BR&EEEaNER BRI T &
Bl sURERAMNS  AEERIEE
AR U 2 R 3k ek T A A M 2
HeELEM-

TR MT B R B) 2 JEHE AR M 52 4] 2 1R B 12
BRIEREEZMBARNEES R 2
ABEAEERBE 2 A FFELHIE

Ho
>
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(@)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

BE—F——F1T-_A=1—HILFE

3.

FESFEE (&)

() sSMEB;E

(@)

(i)

NWEERZHEH

AEBEERZMBRRAMEE
ZHEB RZEBEEREL
TERERRZ2ER ([DEE
BHAE-ARBZNERZR
ERRBE A MIEMRIE
25

EERUBHERTHXEREEG

%Wﬁﬁw%%x%hﬂ$i

A MIBERN B AINEER -
INEEBEER BER 1$

HA R By ) O R4 5 o (R B 30 BUSR
FRELZ BN BETER -

EQ$@%%&M%%H@Z#
EEIBE REETAFEERAY
&R yTE

EHEREE ZABNEMEE
W R BB ERER
MOREMEmK R ER 2 I

EEIEE 2 BERIB SRR
%A 2 AT X 2D R8s i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 3R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. XESTBEE)
(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued) () HMEmE (&
(iii) Translation on consolidation (iii) %55k FFE 5

PRI EARE 2GR
ANEERE T & m #) 48 R B iR
R NI R VS AN ) )

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are

translated into the Company’s presentation currency 2IE%

as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of — FBHMBRAKRMINEERA
financial position presented are translated at BRI BIRARE BRI
the closing rate at the date of that statement of T EE R H 3

financial position;

Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the translation reserve.

- BREROWGRFIE
KEEH (BRIFZ AR IE
RHEMGERREZEN
BENOB AUTERXS5A
MERAH) : R

- FMBEELMNERZHGEE
SRR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——F+=-H=+—HIFZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
translation reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Plant and machinery are carried at fair values, based on
periodic valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation and impairment losses. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount
of the asset. All other property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

3.

EEGEHE (&)

(0 wEsmE (&

(iii) ERE BFEL (&)

R ARE REBIRINERE
BREFBRMEEEENELEZR
VRS REHER - BRI
BR BENENZRELRAE
SRER RIS HERS-

WERINEBELEZHERRAF
EFRBEDNZIRIINERBZEER
BERE WRKRMERBE -

(d) W% BERRE

BB 55 MR A NS B A ERETTZ
EHHEAEE BRAVEMKRER
FENRBEBRAR -REMABHE
MR TEEZEEZREAEY
O MEFRRREECEHSBEED-
PRBEEMYE BFE MR EITRESL
PR R ST & RORE B R 5 AR ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 & M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TESHEHE (&)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) d) ME BERSZE (&

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Revaluation increases of plant and machinery are
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that the increases
reverse revaluation decreases of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss. All other revaluation increases
are credited to the plant and machinery revaluation
reserve as other comprehensive income. Revaluation
decreases that offset previous revaluation increases of
the same asset remaining in the plant and machinery
revaluation reserve are charged against the plant and
machinery revaluation reserve as other comprehensive
income. All other decreases are recognised in profit or
loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
plant and machinery, the attributable revaluation
increases remaining in the plant and machinery
revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained
profits.

B8 B MHRE 2 B2 B A Al
BEMARSE KR EFTEIEE KA
215 /RT’E{§:W$H%’5+J\>§§EE
HEXBARBELEE (RERBRL
fMmiE) e Fﬁﬁﬁ‘rﬁl BIERIRBEX AR E
EXHEEERAER-

R K ER B (G THER A B Tt i 3 e
HAEEFHEGBREZERLTER
BRER - MAEMELTESER
EREMERA WS 2 MFE Mz E R
AR -RIEAREERAMERTT
BZEMBE BERREtES KRS
ZBELR#FREAFEENR -TEE
R ERNNIBRERER LR EEX

RAKERME MR RBRE &
REEGMFHEEHEIDATEZERIGERR
RERBAREBRN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

20% - 50% or
over the lease term,

Leasehold improvements

whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 11% - 20%
Furniture, fixtures and
20% - 30%
20% - 25%

office equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 3R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Leases (Continued)
(ii) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each period during the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same
as owned assets.

(f) Club debenture

Club debenture with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club
debenture has suffered an impairment loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out basis for the manufacturing of swimwear and
related garment products, or weighted average basis for
other operations. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. The cost of merchandises comprises all costs
of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and/or the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 3R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial

0]

instruments (Continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z _—F——F+=-H=+—HIFZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESHEE(Z)

AHHESHEE (&

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) (i)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets not classified as trade and other
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
these investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income, until the investments are disposed of or
there is objective evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
recognised in profit or loss. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for debt
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently reversed and recognised in profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at

cost less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 3R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TESHEHE (&)

(j) Trade and other receivables

() EREZRHEMIRRK

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the receivables’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition. The amount of the allowance is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in
the receivables’ recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 3R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z_—F——F+=-H=+—HIFEZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TESHEHE (&)

(n) AR ES

(n) Convertible bonds

(o)

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the
loans into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing
the embedded option for the holder to convert the
loans into equity of the Group, is included in equity
as convertible bond reserve. The liability component is
carried as a liability at amortised cost using the effective
interest method until extinguished on conversion or
redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bond based
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.
The portion relating to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

AR B T 1A AR IRE E &
BE/FERERSETHRE ZBAT
A-REFFE/ER TR B85
BEREDED -NETEH BE
DA FHEFNBBLUHARER 2 E
AITI5 B RfGaT - BITABRERESFZ
RS IRER BB ERS (AFAEA
REFERSANRE D NIRER
1#) 2 RTHEME 2 ZRA A ERTZ
Al AR IR 75 W - BB R D A R A
FRRBERATRAE BEEAHR
BREFNEE R E DS HESLE-

RHRARBABBRESETARZ
MHEREER ARRER 2 BB NE
SO ZEHE- BB D 2B
MERN ST -

(o) BNEZSRHEMIRK

BN E S REMERDTR L TFET
B R RBIAEBR A RO IR# H A A
ATECRIEMEFEERMN ERBER
T EBNESREMERRIEKAE
S8R



72

China Post E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R oa& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

On-line shopping, advertising and media related service
income is recognised when the service is rendered.

Commission income and income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Distribution right fee income and participation fee income
is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the

terms and conditions of the distribution agreement.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5% R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Employee benefits

(@)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,000 per employee and
vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESHHE(Z)

(r) Employee benefits (Continued) () EERF (&)

(i) BIKZEF (&)

(iij) Pension obligations (Continued)

@iii)

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “"PRC") are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and wages to the central pension scheme to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension scheme
is to meet the required contributions under the
scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of

withdrawal.

R EARLME ([HE])BE
ZASERE R TERBAE
BZHREREFEKE - ANE
BEMEEEAFHFENTEZS
TAE D LRASREAREF IR
EREARBHNZEEZ - HHER
iR EAEBMBRE MoK
HARE B 2 R IRE R Z 5 - AN
SEMPREAREFIBZH—F
ERREAAENELPTF K-

(iii) #1L1EF

BIrEREMNENAEEABLE
A ARy 77 2 B A A] BE R m 77

sk R BRER B FARRE B 5 5 T R (48
M 77 THER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5% R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at fair value of the services rendered or if the
fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% 3R & M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Discontinued operations (Continued)

(v)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the income statement, which
comprises:

—  The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESHHE(Z)

(v) BiE (%)

(v) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5% R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if
any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is @ member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A); or

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% 3R & M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TESHEHE (&)

(x) BEERE

(x) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not
yet available for use are reviewed annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except goodwill, investments, inventories and receivables
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5% R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #Z —F——F+-HA=+—HI FF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(z) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when
material.

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 4.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

3.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Income taxes

(9]

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. The carrying amount
of goodwill at the end of the reporting period was
approximately HK$484,296,000 after an impairment
loss of approximately HK$260,806,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2011. Details of the
impairment loss calculation are provided in note 19 to the

financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

4., BEEHEREEMT (F)

hEt T REMNEZRIR (F)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts (d) REFREEEE

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year
in which such estimate has been changed.

(e) Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 4., BEEABRETEM (&)

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) R FREENEZERE (&)

(f) Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets () TRAEZHEEZHE
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting AEERSHMERRTHEELEM
period whether there is any objective evidence that the XEEZBERALAESE 2 AHLEES
Group's available-for-sale financial assets are impaired. BMEELRBE- BHEZE_T—TF
An impairment loss of approximately HK$43,325,000 T+ A=+—HILEE EHLBE
was made during the year ended 31 December 2010, 43,325,000 EEE  HFBEH R
details of which are set out in note 21 to the financial BTk AP EE21 o
statements.

(9) Fair values of plant and machinery (9) BEREEELFE
The Group appointed an independent professional valuer AEBEZBE VX GERMT GRS
to assess the fair values of the plant and machinery. RS a A TE - EEE A FER - &
In determining the fair values, the valuer has utilised a BEER P RE THETHEET A
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. The EEEERAE  EMMEER AR
directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied RRLER B Y TR ©

that the method of valuation is reflective of the current

market conditions.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5% R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest

rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars and Renminbi (“RMB") which are the
functional currencies of the principal operating entities of
the Group. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances
including pledged bank deposits, and trade and other
receivables included in the statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to the Group's financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
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5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. In order to minimise credit
risk, the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturity at the end of the reporting period of the Group's
financial liabilities based on undiscounted cash flows and
the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash

flows.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. MBEKRER (&)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) () REBELRAK (£)
Specifically, for borrowings which contain a repayment BRZ REsRRITAIENEE
on demand clause which can be exercised at the banks’ KEBZBGHRZEEMS T2
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow BTERERBEEERNREAH
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be (B fiel &R A AT (50 AR AR (1 I 5K
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their RERER) 2HEREBAE -
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
Total
Less than Between Between undiscounted
On demand 1 year 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years cash flows
HBARREIR
EER DPR—F —EWMF —ZRF HeRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT BETT BT T
At 31 December 2011 R=Z——F
+=—HA=+—H
Trade and other payables BB SR
H AR K - 68,036 - - 68,036
Promissory notes AT EIR - 12,503 - 50,000 62,503
Convertible bonds AR ES - 12,500 - - 12,500
Finance lease payables BB E T IE = 80 80 126 286
Borrowings subject to RIBEERER
a repayment on BRZEE
demand clause 29,895 - - - 29,895
Other loan HEMER - 15,375 - - 15,375
29,895 108,494 80 50,126 188,595
At 31 December 2010 R-Z—ZF
+=A=+—H
Trade and other payables ERNE SR
H iR - 18,460 - - 18,460
Promissory notes AN EE - 12,503 - - 12,503

= 30,963 = = 30,963
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5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(0

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summaries the maturity analysis
of borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreements. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretion
to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such borrowings will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

Less than
1 year

PR-F
HK$ 000
BETT

At 31 December 2011 ®n
—H 28,642

5. MBERER (&)

(0

REBESEE (&)

TR ESREREERKZEER
REBEERGHAFZTERAAE
ZEBMA D - EREB|AKE 2 B
A BEERRBITIARGETER
BERERANRER - EFHE A
tEERSRIBEE R R # 2 B 5 A

Total

Between Between undiscounted
1and 2 years 2 and 5 years cash flows
BARER

—EWF —Enf HeRe
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETFT
1,148 936 30,726

Interest rate risk

The Group's pledged bank deposits, convertible bonds
and promissory loans bear interest at fixed interest rates
and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its
other bank deposits and borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interest at variable rates varied with the

then prevailing market condition.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Except as stated above, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

Financial assets: TREE:
Loans and receivables (including
HeEEIRARD)

cash and cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities: cREE:

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

(f) Fair values

Except as disclosed in notes 21, 26 and 27 to the
financial statements, the carrying amounts of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate
their respective fair values.

THEH (ER) ARAR —B——5FH§

MBERER (&)

(d) FE@E (&)
B EXAIEN AEEYEEMBE
AMEBEERABE AEENKER
BELZRSABM BN S E
M BB o

(e) R+t=A=+t—HEMIAEZEH

ERRERER (BFERER

HEERAGEZERARE

2011 2010

S e
HKS$°000 HK$'000
BMFT BEFT
139,922 126,831
177,719 30,860

H AFE

BRI RAR MW 5E21 26 R27TFAHEE
N REBRGRE M BARREKRFR R
ZemEERCRBERABRES
BEAFERE -
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6. TURNOVER 6. EXH
The Group's turnover which represents sales of goods to AEBE2E¥H NHEF2EREER
customers and revenue from provision of on-line shopping, RIEEFEY BERERBHEBRS 2K
advertising and media related services are as follows: ADTTAT
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Sales of goods BEmiEE 236,169 93,883
On-line shopping, advertising and Ry BERES
media related service income MR RIS U A 18,378 4,024
254,547 97,907
Representing: D=
Continuing operations FELEER 164,398 6,231
Discontinued operation (sales of ceramic R IFE LXK (BEEM K
blanks and ferrules) (note 71) EB) (#az11) 90,149 91,676

254,547 97,907
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OTHER INCOME H bW 22
2011 2010
—E——F —T-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T BT T
Bank interest income RITHBWA 18 12
Commission income HelA 1,687 -
Distribution right fee income DIEEBA 3,221 —
Interest on promissory notes written back % [B] # {5 Z 1% Fl 8 248 248
Interest on other loan written back [0 5 A & 5F 2 377 —
Net foreign exchange gains SN I 28 5 RE 149 18
Other loan interest income HaE R EWA - 8
Participation fee income S2EBYA 190 -
Sundry income FEIFA 1,435 106
Design fee income JETEBERA 542 -
7,867 392

Representing: P

Continuing operations B E XY 7,698 324
Discontinued operation (note 11) BRI E R (Hat11) 169 68
7,867 392
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has four reportable segments as follows:

Swimwear - Manufacturing and trading
of high-end swimwear and
related garment products
Apparel and related — Trading and retail of apparel and

accessories related accessories

Ceramic blanks and

Manufacturing and trading of
ferrules ceramic blanks and ferrules
(discontinued operation)

On-line shoppingand -  Provision of on-line shopping,
advertising advertising and media related
services

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The Group’s other operating segment includes general
trading business. This segment does not meet any of the
quantitative thresholds for determining reportable segment.
The information of this other operating segment is included in
the ‘others’ column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as those described in note 3 to the financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include other
income, finance costs, impairment of goodwill and available-
for-sale financial assets, gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
loss on disposal of discontinued operation and corporate
administrative and other operating expenses. Segment assets
do not include club debenture, goodwill and other assets for
general administrative use. Segment liabilities do not include
promissory notes, convertible bonds and other liabilities for
general administrative use.

THAAREE O E R R E D

PKE — AEREEREKX
KNMBBEREKE
R & N2 4H 8 BEELTERM N
[Kes W@M#
FIEREM K — HERHERER
EE MEERB(BE#R
IR )
REBYR - RHEKLEEY E
EE R R
%

REB 2z /@ E D #R IR TR E m &R
BzREERBEL AR SHEEBHER
TRz EMETSRE Bt RBLE
I o

AEBZHMEESBBRIE—REBEEE
ot AT FAEUEHNEETRED
BOZRE-FRANRHEMBEES B 2ERE
BIER THEAM] HA -

LD B2 B RTBUR R 5 R M RE3 AT A
EHER-DEENEEBRL T EBEEMIK

@ BB BERAHIESREEL
BE HEMBARKE HECKR RS
EBZERMEETRMEMEEER-
DEHEELTBEGMES B8 kEM
HE—RITERERZBEE - D HBELTE
EAENEE - TRRES REBHE KT
BiERZBE-
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEESR (&)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets ARENEER EERBBEZBEBER
and liabilities:
Ceramic
blanks and
Apparel ferrules On-line
and related  (Discontinued  shopping and
Swimwear accessories operation) advertising Others Total
BEZMR
REk EE (BAL REBNR
&3 HER 4 BEXHK) EE it @t
HKS000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BRI BB BB BETT BEFT AR
Year ended 31 December 2011  EHZE=ZE-—-—
TZRZt-BLEEE
Revenue from external customers ~ RESNFEF 2z 53,929 92,091 90,149 18,378 - 254,547
Segment profit/loss) AEEFH/ (EE) 1,204 992 (2382) (11,588) - (11,774)
Depreciation ik 955 1379 17,348 1,021 - 20,703
Income tax expense FERHER 668 1,919 701 - - 3,288
Other material non-cash item: HUEAFREEE
Equity-settled share-based SMERES 2R
payments RERAH - 2,676 - - - 2,676
Additions to segment RENHERYEE
non-current assets 105 4,985 - 2,506 - 7,596
As at 31 December 2011 RZ8-—-f+=A=+-H
Segment assets PHEE 46,626 128,735 - 10,354 - 185,715
Segment liabilities PHEE 24,887 79,204 - 5,221 - 109,312
Year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-Z-Ff
TZAZt+-HLEE
Revenue from external customers  REMNFEP 2 Mz - - 91,676 4,004 2,207 97,907
Segment profit/{oss) PR/ (B8 - - 2,355 (6,295) (1318) (5,258)
Depreciation ik - - 8,518 600 108 9,226
Income tax expense FERHER - - 4,049 - - 4,049
Additions to segment NENBERBDEE
non-current assets - - - 1,591 - 1,591
As at 31 December 2010 R=B-3&
+ZA=t-H
Segment assets PHEE - - 85,908 2,673 178 88,759
Segment liabilities AHEE - - 35,616 956 40 36,612
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, GIE:
EE .

assets and liabilities:

Revenue

Total revenue of reportable segments
Elimination of discontinued operation

Consolidated revenue from
continuing operations

Profit or loss

Total profit or loss of
reportable segments

Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Other profit or loss

Elimination of discontinued operation

Consolidated loss for the year from

continuing operations

Assets

Total assets of reportable segments

Goodwill

Club debenture

Other assets
Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Total liabilities of reportable segments

Promissory notes
Convertible bonds
Other liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Apart from the above, the totals of other material items
disclosed in the segment information are the same as the

consolidated totals.

W
Al RS 0 BB e #BME
HBRERIEREEH

REFELEER 2RAWE

AR

Al RED BB AE

BRI E
AHfHESREERE

HE B AR s
Ho At g A 2% &5 18
HBRERIEREEK

KEFBREXRHLZ
FAHEBIE

aE
ARG S HEESE
HE

o ES

HibAE

MAEEERE
8f&

AREDMABERE
ANER
AR (A 75
HipB (&

meERERE

THERE

Ml B BERAGBZH

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
HK$000 HK$'000
BB FT B F T
(Restated)

(&%)

254,547 97,907
(90,149) (91,676)
164,398 6,231
(11,774) (5,258)
(260,806) -
- (43,325)

- 903
(20,647) (9,590)
2,252 (4,387)
(290,975) (61,657)
185,715 88,759
484,296 75,343
205 -
45,836 98,492
716,052 262,594
109,312 36,612
52,512 12,400
12,276 -
21,256 15,249

195,356 64,261

B EIN ROMERBEREEMERXN
RS BEAR -
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEER (&)

Geographical information: EEER :
Revenue Non-current assets
W FREBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—F —E-%F —E-—F —T-%F
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
BT JBEFT BEFT BT
Hong Kong B8 104,055 5,996 493,548 76,461
PRC except HongKong R

and Macau (BB XBPIBRIN) 92,228 91,911 4,525 37,831
United Kingdom < 15,031 - - -
Spain [iiRiazs 7,834 = - =
Hungary % 7F ) 7,549 — - -
Sweden I 5,942 - - -
Macau P 5,429 - - -
United States of America 3= 3,642 = - =
Netherlands Gl 2,951 = - =
Israel LA 85 2,890 = - =
France Py 2,250 - - -
Denmark ;25 1,676 = - =
Ireland ERE 1,393 - - -
Poland R 1,170 - - -
Others Hfb 507 = - =
Discontinued operation B A% |F 4% & H 75 (90,149) (91,676) - -
Consolidated total e BE 164,398 6,231 498,073 114,292

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based

on the locations of the customers.

25l E R Was TIAR PP #
REAE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

8. IHEHR (&)

Revenue from major customers: REFTEEFZWE:
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$000 HK$ 000
BT T JEMF T
Ceramic blanks and ferrules BEEZM RERE
(discontinued operation) (BERIEEEHE)
Customer a EFa 33,736 16,255
Customer b ZFEb - 24,673
FINANCE COSTS 9. MR
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Finance lease charges B HEEST 9 -
Interest on bank loans IRITE A E 540 =
Interest on convertible bonds AR EHF B 228 =
Interest on promissory notes ZENES: S/ FS) 1,795 248
Interest on other loans H i ERFE 377 194
2,949 442
Representing: KA :
Continuing operations REREER 2,949 442
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREHER
2011 2010
—E——F —T-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T BB TFoT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEATRIE — B BN EH
Provision for the year FARE 2,639 =
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR 4 =
2,643 -
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ BVEfFiE — R B ATEHT
Provision for the year FREE 3,969 4,301
Deferred tax (note 31) BERIE (H5E31) (3,324) (252)
Income tax expense gt & B 3,288 4,049
Representing: KA :
Continuing operations SR EER 2,587 =
Discontinued operation (note 11) BRI E R (HfaET1) 701 4,049
3,288 4,049

BEMNEHIREBEZE_Z—F+-A
=t —HUEFEZAFTRERBUG AR K
16.5%+tE - ANAEBRHE_T—TF
T A=t BULFREIEETEELE
A ERBOEN A B ZFRIELEB
ST R o

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
December 2011. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made for the year ended 31 December 2010 as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during that year.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. RIBHER (&)
Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been H At [ 2 J& SR Tt g ) B0 TR T #2725 & (B 4%
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in EEBREBER 2RITHE  WREE M
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, WITENR ZREREOIFE

interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the TIRFSHE A MR AT(EE), &
product of (loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong FUBEBBNEHEMBBECEHER:

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

2011 2010
—E——F T —TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T B FoT
(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (EIR), S5
Continuing operations B E TS (288,388) (61,657)
Discontinued operation (note 11) BRI E R (HE11) (1,551) 8,436
(289,939) (53,221)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of BARMATSHE165%TE 2
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) BMBE(ZE—FF:16.5% ) (47,840) (8,781)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable ~ BBRHRWA Z FHIGF £ (708) (44)
Tax effect of expenses that are TR MBAS 2 RGBT E
not deductible 48,386 10,289
Tax effect of other temporary AEREREZE BT E
differences not recognised 893 (12)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEBEEE BB E 2,352 1,328
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRABTFERERZ
not previously recognised MIBEBZMETE (38) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries BFiEB A al T~ REI1Fi X 2 §2 £ 239 1,269
Underprovision in prior years BAEFERETR 4 -

Income tax expense iSfi & 3,288 4,049
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 1. ORLEREEK

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 27
September 2011 entered into between the Company and
an independent third party, the Company disposed of 100%
interests in Opcom Holdings (BVI) Limited (“Opcom”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI")
at a consideration of HK$45,000,000.

Opcom was engaged in investment holding and held 100%
interests in Intcera High Tech (BVI) Limited, Rich Palace Limited
and Intcera High Tech (HK) Limited. Opcom and its subsidiaries
(the "Opcom Group”) was engaged in manufacturing
and trading of ceramic blanks and ferrules in the PRC. The
disposal was completed on 9 December 2011 and the Group
discontinued its Ceramic blanks and ferrules business.

The (loss)/profit for the year from the discontinued operation
is analysed as follows:

(Loss)/profit of discontinued operation ERIEREES 2
(E18) s A
Loss on disposal of discontinued HEBRIELEER 2
operation (note 36) B8 (H1iE36)

BEARARE—RBLE =52 BE
AR-E——FAA-_T+RZEEWHE -
2K A VAR (B 7 #45,000,0007T (& 7
Opcom Holdings (BVI) Limited ( [Opcom |)
(—HREBRLXHE ([RBREXFHE])
MR 2 R E]) Z100%HE s ©

Opcomft EIE AR % 7 & 45 Blintcera
High Tech (BVI) Limited * Rich Palace Limited
EREEERBE(EBE)ROAERAQ
B8] Z100%# %5 > Opcom R H i B A A
([OpcomEZEE | ) #t E1E A B & K §5E
AEMREB - HEFHENR T ——F
TZANBEAMAREERILEEESR
MEREB K-

REBRIEEEERZFN (BR),5h
DHTUE

2011 2010
—g-——F  —T-2%F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT
(2,252) 4,387
(44,988) =

(47,240) 4,387
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 1. SRLEREER (&)
The results of the discontinued operation for the period from 1 ERIEREEBER_T——F—H—HZE
January 2011 to 9 December 2011, which have been included —E——F+ANBLEBHEZEE (B
in consolidated profit or loss, are as follows: FFALZEBEEA) T
Period from
1 January 2011 Year ended
to 9 December 31 December
2011 2010
—E2——-F
—B—RZE BE
—E2——F —T-TF
+=ZARBE +ZA=+—H
-1 LFE
HK$000 HK$000
BETT BT
Turnover (note 6) LR (fit6) 90,149 91,676
Cost of sales & B A (84,598) (72,264)
Gross profit £ 5,551 19,412
Other income (note 7) Hidzs (Ataz7) 169 68
Administrative expenses THEH (40) (249)
Other operating expenses Hi s =8 (7.231) (10,795)
(Loss)/profit before tax BEAT (B1B),/ 5 (1,551) 8,436
Income tax expense (note 10) PRSI ER (K17F10) (701) (4,049)
(Loss)/profit for the period/year B/ R (EBR),/&F (2,252) 4,387
During the year, the disposed subsidiaries paid approximately FR - BHEHNBRARCHELEERL
HK$2,516,000 (2010: HK$2,195,000) in respect of operating A 2,516,000 (ZE—FF : B
activities. 2,195,0007T ) °
No tax charge or credit arose on loss on disposal of the MERNEEERIEKEER 2 EIEmES
discontinued operation. BB E R -
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12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FREE
The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) AEEZFANEBE MR (FHA) T5)E
the following: B:

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total

BFESEEY BALEEEE @t
201 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“g--% -F-TF CZ%$--F _-T-TF CZB--§ -T-IF
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

BETFT EETT BETFT BT BETFT BT

Auditor's remuneration ZERM & 1,200 600 - = 1,200 600
Acquisition-related costs WA (Bt ATTHE
(included in administrative expenses) i) 3,076 - - - 3,076 =
Cost of inventories sold BEHEFEKER 66,264 1,612 84,598 72,264 150,862 73,876
Depreciation neE 3,355 708 17,348 8,518 20,703 9,226
(Reversal of)/allowance for inventories 7 & (&) /B (2t A
(included in cost of inventories sold) BHEFERAK) (247) - 6,033 4,808 5,786 4,808
Allowance for receivables JE R BRI B 1 44 1,171 - 4,290 44 5,461
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BEREELEE
plant and equipment 24 - - - 24 -
Operating lease charges THREF EEHERS
for land and buildings 21,452 1,275 1,527 121 22,979 1,396
Staff costs including directors' BINK (BEEEHE)
emoluments
Salaries, bonus and allowances e AkER 49,388 9,186 13,099 9,374 62,487 18,560
Retirement benefit RINEFIT B
scheme contributions 3,248 249 742 636 3,990 885
Provision for employee EERAEEZEE
benefit obligations 174 - - - 174 -
52,810 9,435 13,841 10,010 66,651 19,445
Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation and CHERERAGES THRA FERK
operating lease charges of approximately HK$38,270,000 KT E % #4938 138,270,0007C ( — B —
(2010: HK$16,456,000) which are included in the amounts T4 B H16,456,0007T) DR EXIHE

disclosed separately above. 2 EzEHR DRI o
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EERESFM
The emoluments of each director were as follows: BESFZHEeMT:
Retirement benefit
Fees Salaries and allowances scheme contributions Total
e FeREY RUBRGEMR EHY
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“B--% =-%-%Ff C-%--§ <-%-%§f CZB--f C-T-%F C-Z--§ Z%-%f
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$000
BETT  EETT  BETT  BEETT  AEFT BETr BEFT BB
Executive Directors UITES
Mr. Chung Man Wai EXERE - = 1484 857 18 12 1,502 869
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph ARRLE 600 650 1,856 1,836 12 12 2,468 2,498
600 650 3,340 2,693 30 24 3,970 3,367
Independent Non-executive BUKHTES
Directors
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex BB 60 60 - - - - 60 60
Mr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHEKEE 60 60 - - - - 60 60
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BRERE 60 60 - - - - 60 60
180 180 - - - - 180 180
780 830 3,340 2,693 30 24 4,150 3,547

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2010: Nil).

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 2 (2010: 2) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the
remaining 3 (2010: 3) individuals are set out below:

Basic salaries and allowances HARFH & FoERL

Retirement benefit scheme contributions B K18 F 5T 2] (3

FRAALBETAEHESTHEXFABREL
ez (ZFT—FF H)-

FRAAEERIERRFMALH WE
REARBER(ZZT—TF WA)  HM
THBERLEX 2R 25 - Efr=%
(ZE—FF =R)BSHFMEE ZF M
LANE

2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BETIT
5,567 1,225

24 30

5,591 1,255
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13. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EERESHFM (&)
(Continued)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: EHH B AT #S
Number of individuals
AT EE
2011 2010
S e
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 BT T EE%1,000,0007T 1 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 75 %51,000,001 .2
7 #51,500,0007T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 75 #53,000,001 T E
75 %3,500,0007T 1 -
3 3
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FRAEEWEREMESHTE T M
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as ATZNME ERMARER 2SS
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BB mES (T —TF &) -

compensation for loss of office (2010: Nil).

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 14. XA RIEB AELEREE
THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company RAEBEABEFABBEERECHALRR
included a loss of approximately HK$271,377,000 (2010: a0 7% ik 2 B8 408 #5271,377,0007T
HK$113,718,000) which has been dealt with in the financial (ZZE—FF: %%113,718,0007T ) °

statements of the Company.

15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend EEXETEEREBEE-T——F+=A
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil). =t+—BLEFERNEMNRE (ZE—F

FE) -
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16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. K (FE) BF

(a) REFAECEXBRORIELEXREK

(a) From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic loss per share FRELXEE
RABHEE ARG SREREIE TR
BARREE AEBLZFEEBBLOE
#338,527,0007T (= — T F : B
55,196,0007T ) R FREE1T 2 LBk
2 hNkE 15 #02,370,061,6810% (=&
—Z 4 1 1,893,562,6680% ) 51 & -

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$338,527,000 (2010: HK$55,196,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,370,061,681 (2010: 1,893,562,668) in issue during the
year.

Diluted loss per share SFREBBEE

RARER ANEIEEBREEERTIIR
BTIEIERE

The calculation of diluted loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following:

2011 2010
—E——F —T-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Loss for the purpose of calculating  FFESREREEM S 2 EE
basic loss per share (338,527) (55,196)
Less: profit of non-wholly owned BT B BREE
subsidiary shared to non- TR IEIEIRR R DG
controlling shareholder upon 2 EMB AR m A
exercise of options granted (K1a£34(0b))
to a consultant (note 34(b)) (348) -
Loss for the purpose of calculating FFESREEEIEMS 2 &8
diluted loss per share (338,875) (55,196)
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16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

From continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

Diluted loss per share (Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year is the same as that detailed above for
basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations.

The exercise of the Group’s outstanding convertible
bonds and convertible non-voting preference shares for
the year ended 31 December 2011 would be anti-dilutive
and there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for
the Company’s share options during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

From continuing operations

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the loss for the year from continuing operations
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$291,287,000 (2010: HK$59,583,000) and the
denominator used is the same as that detailed above for
basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations.

A _E—— A=+ —HIFE

THEE (ER) ARARA

—e——55H

16. B (B#E) BF (&)

(a)

(b)

REFEACEXRBRORIEEERE
(#&)

GREBEER (E)

FREHITEBR 2 INEFHRE
XAk AR EREEB R ERIE
REXBZERERNBEEMER -

RBZE-_ZT——F+=-A=+—HL
FETEAEBREMARITEZAIRRE
FhAMREREREELIRES RE
SEERARBE _ET——FR_Z-F
F+ZA=+—HBLEFEMEFBAL
NElZERE 2 BEEEEEAR-

REBRACEEXEK

GREFER

RAGHEEABERERFBECEED
ZERERNBEIBEARFEEA
BIEREBFECEEB 2 FEBERY
75 #291,287,000c (ZZE—ZF 18
#59,583,0007T ) MFr{E 2 H&FEE |-
NG ERERELEEBRE
IR P RS TS 2 BRRE A E BT A
Z DR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——F+=-H=+—HIFZF

16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) From continuing operations (Continued)

Diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company is

16. B (&1#8) BF (4)
(b) REFEKEER (&)
GRBBER

ARAHEEANEEREFELLER
ZEBBREFERIIRE T 8IE

based on the following:

Loss for the purpose of calculating
basic loss per share
Less: profit of non-wholly owned
subsidiary shared to non-
controlling shareholder upon
exercise of options granted
to a consultant (note 34(b))

s

Loss for the purpose of calculating
diluted loss per share

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year is the same as that detailed above for
basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations.

The exercise of the Group's outstanding convertible
bonds and convertible non-voting preference shares for
the year ended 31 December 2011 would be anti-dilutive
and there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for
the Company'’s share options during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

ﬁ_ a
2011 2010
i —E-FF
HK$000 HK$'000
BYTFT BT T
AEEREREEMES 2EBE
(291,287) (59,583)
B BT — B B
BT IEERRE 2 1R
FEEEWB AR Z 5% T
(K1a£34(b))
(348) -
TEEREEEEmNS 2B
(291,635) (59,583)

FRAERTEBRZMEFHHEE
XK ARFELSEEB RO R ILE
REXB 2 BRERNEREMER -

REBZE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HL
FETEAEERAKITEZTBREKE
FRUBRELEEEERAGRE
BIEARBEE_ZT——FR=-ZT—F
FT+_A=T—HBLFEHREEBAAL
Nl BARRE 2 B S R
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 16. R (B#E) BR (&)

() RECRIEEEXK

(c) From discontinued operation

Basic loss (2010: earnings) per share from the
discontinued operation is HK1.993 cents per share (2010:
HKO0.232 cent per share), based on the loss for the year
from discontinued operation attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$47,240,000
(2010: profit for the year from discontinued operation
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$4,387,000) and the denominator used is the same as
that detailed above for basic loss per share.

As the exercise of the Group’s outstanding convertible
bonds and convertible non-voting preference shares for
the year ended 31 December 2011 would be anti-dilutive
and there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for
the Company’s share options, no diluted loss per share
was presented in both years.

REERIEKEEEB 2 BRERES
(ZZE—ZF:8H) BEKR1.993%
W(ZF—=F: 58&0.232%1L) -
ZEBRBEAAREE ARGRE
BRI EEB 2 FEEBELBE
47,240,0007T ( ZZF—ZF : AR A
BEABRGERBEERIEKEEB 2FE
% M #9785 #64,387,0007T ) R AT fE R 2
HEE AT EERENEE
ERzHEER -

ARBE—T——F+-_A=1t—H
I FREARBERITRZ ATRERES R
AR ERREELRNTREAAR
EESFRESEAEHEAR R ZERE
ZEBEEEEAN AN ZMEFE
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17. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 17. 2 E WK
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive FAFTFANEMEZAWRSEELD 2 WG
income for the year: 2.
2011 2010
—E--F “T-%F
Amount Amount Amount Amount
before tax Tax after tax before tax Tax after tax
BREAEHE BE  REASE  BEaeE RE  KEgeE

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
ERFr  BEFL  EMTn EETT ERTT BETR

Exchange differences on REENEBELEL

translating foreign operations EHZE 1,741 - 1,741 1,335 = 1,335
Exchange differences reclassified o~ REHMENBAREH

income statement on disposal of PEENGRNELZH

subsidiaries (4,855) - (4,855) = - -
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of BfiN% BEREELZ

property, plant and equipment Bt/ (B4) 9 (1) 8 (32,102) 8,026 (24,076)
Other comprehensive income FREMZENE

for the year (3.105) (1) (3.106) (30,767) 8,026 22,7141)
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. % HMERRE
Group
|
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
BRC-EKER
HEMELE B R 28 RAERE AE wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JEBFT BEFT B¥FT JEEFr JEEFr
Cost or valuation BAED fE
At 1 January 2010 R=E-ZF—f—H 447 77,434 1,158 - 79,039
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR (325) = (50) = (375)
Additions B 368 - 1,223 - 1,591
Deficit on revaluation BhEA = (40,620) - = (40,620)
Exchange differences ERER 9 - 19 - 28
At 31 December 2010 and RZZE—ZF
1 January 2011 +-B=+-Bk
—2——F
—H—H 499 36,814 2,350 - 39,663
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) KB A
(Hit35) 1,109 3,729 1,930 493 7,261
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEHBLR
(Hs236) = (36,814) (14) - (36,828)
Additions B 1,389 80 2,610 1,717 5,796
Disposals HE - - (691) = (691)
Surplus on revaluation EfAR - (745) - - (745)
Exchange differences ERER 15 - 43 = 58
At 31 December 2011 RZT——F
+=-A=+—-H 3,012 3,064 6,228 2,210 14,514
Accumulated depreciation and RAMERRAE
impairment
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-ZF—-H—H 123 - 117 = 240
Charge for the year FRRZ 165 8,518 543 - 9,226
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR (214) = 1) = (235)
Write back on revaluation EREEE - (8,518) - - (8,518)
Exchange differences ERER - - 1 - 1
At 31 December 2010 and RZT—TF
1 January 2011 +ZA=+—Hk
—Z——F
—HA—H 74 - 640 - 714
Charge for the year FRHAY 988 18,102 1,269 344 20,703
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HERE AR
(H5236) = (17,348) (14) - (17,362)
Disposals HE - - (567) = (567)
Write back on revaluation BhEEE = (754) = = (754)
Exchange differences ERER 3 - 5 - 8
At 31 December 2011 R-B——F
+=A=+-8H 1,065 - 1333 344 2,742
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2011 RZT——F
+=-A=+—-H 1,947 3,064 4,895 1,866 11,772
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—FF
+=A=1-8 425 36,814 1,710 - 38,949
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BE—F——F+=A=f—AULFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2011 of

18. W% BERRHE (&)
PIEER - T——%+-_A=+—B2

the above assets is as follows: BB ESTT :
Group
S|
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office
improvements machinery equipment  Motor vehicles Total
B EER
HENELE BRE R RAERE AE k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JEMFT BEEFIT BEEFIT BYFT EMFT
At cost RAE 3,012 - 6,228 2,210 11,450
At valuation 2011 RiEE-ZF——F - 3,064 - - 3,064
3,012 3,064 6,228 2,210 14,514

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2010 of

FABEER-_ZE—ZF+_A=+—HZ

the above assets is as follows: AR ESEED AT
Group
TEHE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office
improvements machinery equipment Motor vehicles Total
Bk RER
HEMERE TR Rt 2% BOERE RE wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BYFT BEFT BETFT BETFT
At cost RAE 499 = 2,350 - 2,849
At valuation 2010 REE-Z2—TF - 36,814 - - 36,814
499 36,814 2,350 - 39,663

The Group’s plant and machinery were revalued at fair
market value on 31 December 2010 and 2011 by reference to
market evidence of recent transactions for similar plant and
machinery by Ample Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
professional valuers.

The carrying amount of the Group's plant and machinery
would have been approximately HK$3,055,000 (2010:
HK$9,926,000) had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

At 31 December 2011 the carrying amount of motor
vehicle held by the Group under finance lease amounted to
approximately HK$229,000 (2010: HK$Nil).

REBZRBEI SRR BEMEXGE
ERFEERAFAN_Z-ZFR_-ZF
——F+ZA=+—B2RALURE k¥
A2 MERHEMEE

fidl LA BE 5B B A 5k R 51 3T & KR B B 18 7]
B - NEEEE M#2s 2 BRE BB A5
3,055,0007T (=& —Z 4 : 19,926,000

JT)

R-_E—EF+_A=+—0 xEEHE
RMERE 2 TE/MEREEL A781229,000
T(ZE—TF BET) -
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19. GOODWILL 19. BE
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-FF
HK$°000 HK$000
B F T BT T
Cost RAE
At beginning of year R EFA) 75,343 75,343
Acquisition of Easy Time Trading Limited 4 #&Easy Time Trading Limited
(“Easy Time") (note 35(a)) ([Easy Time ]) (H1at35(a)) 640,966 -
Acquisition of Charmston (Holdings) WisGsr (SE8) BR AR
Limited (“Charmston”) (note 35(b)) (TEE 1) (K77E35(0)) 28,793 -
At end of year RER 745,102 75,343
Accumulated impairment losses R EEE
At beginning of year R EFA) - =
Impairment loss recognised FACHERBEEE
during the year 260,806 -
At end of year RER 260,806 -
Carrying amount FREE
At beginning of year R EFA) 75,343 75,343

At end of year RER 484,296 75,343
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19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. B8 (&)
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at REBEHEEBERNKEROEER
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGUs") that are HRRBEREB a2 ReEEEML ([]R
expected to benefit from that business combination. Before SEEEMN]) HNBEEEERZAED
recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of o EREErNT

goodwill had been allocated as follows:

Group
KEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
B FoT BB F T
Provision of on-line shopping, advertising $2{t4R FREY) - E & L iH A
and media related services 8 78 IR 7%
iKanTV Limited (“iKanTV") (note (a)) EEREERERAF
(IBBER]) (K@) 75,343 75,343
Swimwear ke
Easy Time (note (b)) Easy Time (#73£(b)) 640,966 -
Apparel and related accessories AR 2% K 6 B8 e &0
Charmston (note (c)) BEET (K12t (c)) 28,793 =

745,102 75,343
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19. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The recoverable amount of the provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU is determined from
value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rate and
budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period. The Group
estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU. The growth rate is based on long-term average economic
growth rate of the geographical area in which the business of the
CGU operates. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
(2010: five) years with no growth rate in the residual period (2010:
3%). This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount the forecast cash
flows from the Group's activities of provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services is 17.09% (2010: 12.93%).

Based on the past performance, the Group has revised its cash flow
forecasts for this CGU. The goodwill has therefore been reduced to
its recoverable amount through recognition of an impairment loss
against goodwill of approximately HK$10,600,000 during the year.

A _E—— A=+ —HIFE

THEE (ER) ARARA

—E-——F5H

19. B8 (&)

Bt

(a)

RESZLEY  BERERBBRE  REE
BN 2 AT EETHARIRE R EEMEE &1
HEMREEMERNIZRRBEUEE
BERRHNZAEENRAREEE K
SENEE R R ERBRRAE X %
MR ERR B RIS HERRREERZ A
AR EREReELEEM AR FERR -
BEXRTINRSELEMUMEEEB 2R
ZRBFORBEERRQELE - FHEEHN K
KB E Ty BB G R 5% R 2 TH
REEE-

AEBBERSRZBANIEREARES
WEZAREF(ZZ—ZF A5 )UKAE
BURBERRZZE(ZE—2F:3%)1%
REFE-FHLERIARBBEEMSB 2T
HRAERR - BAREIASERER
Y RS REBEERE ZEBEEXA
17.09% (ZZF—TF:12.93%) °

BEATRER AEEEEIIHBReELS
2B RETER Bt HERFAREBRE
AR E B B 47 #10,600,0007T 7 2= H
AJ iz [B] 458 o
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19. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The recoverable amount of the swimwear CGU is determined
from fair value less costs to sell using the market-based approach
calculated based on the average price-earnings ratio of several
companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “comparables”) after considering a 22.51% discount on lack
of marketability for the controlling interests which is determined by
the density function for the maximum of a Brownian motion process
by adopting average annualised volatility of the comparables and
assuming marketing period is approximately 3 months.

The consideration for the acquisition of Easy Time was
HK$390,000,000 which was satisfied by the issuance of convertible
non-voting preference shares, promissory notes and consideration
shares. The consideration was determined with reference to,
including but limited to, the historical financial performance of
Easy Time Group, profit guarantee given by the vendor and the
price-earnings ratios of the comparables. The fair value of the
convertible non-voting preference shares, promissory notes and
consideration shares issued for the acquisition of Easy Time as at
the date of completion of the acquisition is higher than the total
consideration stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement resulted
in an allowance for impairment of goodwill of approximately
HK$250,206,000.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Easy Time
and its subsidiaries (“Easy Time Group”) acquired were determined
provisionally in the financial statements of the Group for each of the
quarters ended 30 September 2011. An allowance for impairment
of goodwill of approximately HK$254,853,000 was made in the
financial statements of the Group for the nine months ended 30
September 2011.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group made certain fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of Easy Time Group as a result of completing the initial
accounting. The adjustments to the fair values at the acquisition
date of the identifiable assets and liabilities were made as if initial
accounting had been incorporated from the date of acquisition.
As a result of this change in accounting estimate, allowance for
impairment of goodwill decreased by approximately HK$4,647,000
to HK$250,206,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011.

19. B8 (&)

Hrt: ()

(b)

R A B AL AR EE TR & A
REERZ T 5B IEIT#22.51%1% « (£ AR
BREEHMARZMER AT LT 2 ERA
A (AR AE]) 2 FEamAaXtEzmS
AR A FERSHE AN E R G AR iR
Z MBI 2R E B EES B R
BT R WERA T LR A A 2 F
BERFHERRBREHEPROR=HAE

-
E°

W fE Easy Time 2 {8 & 7%390,000,0007T *
HEUBTABRRERZEELR AHZ
BEREROIZF -ZRENES2E (B
BRR) Easy TmeS B 2 BAMBERIA - BF
FriRt 2 S FREBERA BRI ZMARE
TE o W BB Easy Timeifn 397 2 Al A A% £ 1% 22 4
BER FEERERERORKETKA
Az A FEEREBEREMAT ZARE:
108 T B B 8 R (B 49 75 #5250,206,0007T ©

FriiE Easy Time & EFi 8 A 7] ([Easy Times
B zra#REERBEZ AFEREAEER
HE-T——FNA=THILEEE 2K
BEREERET ASECREE=-F——
FRA=ZTHIENERZHBEHREAN TR
PR RR (B 18 8 40 75 15 254,853,0007T °©

RIREER  AEEREK IS STRIRE -

BiEasy TimeSE Al F A EE K BB ZRH
B (EEETATERAE - JHEERAR
R Bz A FEREL AR  Muyde
FTERIEC UK EE B 1T - BN & T ART
MEEEs HE-_T——F+-_A=+—H
1WEFE - BB E B R 2 4048 14,647,000
JT & 5 %250,206,0007T °
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19. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

The recoverable amount of the apparel and related accessories CGU
is determined from value in use calculation. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculation are similar to the provision of on-line
shopping, advertising and media related services CGU as stated in
note (a) above.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
years with the residual period using the growth rate of 5%. This rate
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets. The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from
the Group's activities of provision of trading and retail of apparel
and related accessories is 16.89%. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the
apparel and related accessories CGU's recoverable amount is based
would not cause its carrying amount to exceed its recoverable
amount.

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted investments, at cost

Due from subsidiaries
Less: impairment losses

Due to subsidiaries

Net carrying amount

JE A5 BT /B8 1~ R R R
B R B B

FE S BT B8 2~ R R0R

BRmEFE

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

A _E—— A=+ —HIFE

THEE (ER) ARARA

—e——55H

19. B8 (&)

HrE: (%)

(0)

FLHRE BAAE

REMARBR MRS EL B 2 AT KREETY
RIBEREEMEE -t EEBEEMER
B E ZRFRACUN LT @PIHIRZ & L
By BENERAERERSELEM-

AEBERBEReRZEANZERFIAES
iz 2 R A F BT TR LA R AR AR 2 5%
BRRFAE - FRLXY RBRAGHEM S 2
FHRHEEX  FEARBENARASEREER
EARE RARRIR M 2 E 5 R K 516.89% ©
EEERGE IR RIBEEREELEM
ZAWEEZ EERRZEFMEER LR S
KA S G AR EBREEATKREE-

20. AMB AT ZRE

Company

Z NN

2011
—B——%
HK$°000
BT

2010
—E—ZF
HK$'000
BT T

391,060 10

207,096
(59,607)

140,780
(46,234)

147,489 94,546

(13,944) (843)

524,605 93,713

s N BARRIAREER 28
o 48 [ T A& K A
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. RMIB AR Z’RE (&)

RZF——F+-A=1+—HHEBARL.Z

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are as

follows: EICLUNE
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued and
Name operation paid up capital Percentage of ownership Principal activities
EMARILEE
B BRREXHE BRTRBERE BERESL TEXK
2011 2010
—E-——-% “E-FF
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
HE Gk Bk i
China Post E-Commerce Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Group Limited HK$1 each
THEEREEBRAA BE BREEEE 1T RERR
10,0008 & i@ A%
Easy Time BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - - - Investment holding
US$1 each
Easy Time RERAES BRAEGBIETZ REER
& A
Luxey International (Holdings) Hong Kong 100 ordinary share of 100% - 100% - Inactive
Limited (formerly known as HK$1 each
Midas Product Solutions Limited)
ERER (ER)BRAR BE BREGBE 1T Eex
(FIBEZRRARDA) 100 & R
Synergy Chain Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - - - Investment holding
US$1 each
Synergy Chain Limited KBREAHE SREBIETZ REER
TREBR
Active Capital Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 51% - - Not yet commenced business
HK$1 each
EE=1NG| B shkmEE¥ITZ R AR B I i
TRE AR
Bestime (Asia Pacific) Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of - 51% - - Provision of management services
HK$1 each
2R (TR)ERAR & BREGBE 1T REERRE
100 & R
Bestime (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 51% - - Trading of men's apparel and
HK$1 each provision of management
services
2% (BB)ERAA & BREGBE 1T BERTRENKRBERRS

10,000f% & i@z
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

L

Charmston

s

Charmston Limited

BHBER R

Charmston Apparel Limited
Charmston Apparel Limited
Charmston Apparel
Marketing Limited
Charmston Apparel
Marketing Limited
Eternal International
Creation Limited
KEEREARERAH

Expert Concept Limited

BRERAF

HD Production Limited

BEEEREBRAR

iKanTV

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
EMARALILE
BRREXBE

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

BVI

EERZRE

Issued and
paid up capital

ERTRARRA

1,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
SREES®ITZ
1,000 & & A&

1,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
BREEBEITL
1,000,000 & i

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
EREEBK 1T
10,000/% & i A%

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
SREES®ITZ
10,000/ & i Az

1 ordinary share of
HK$1 each
BREEEKITZ
THRE A

100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
BREEESITL
100k & AR

100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
BREEBS 1T
100 & @R

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
BRAEEIETZ
1001k &K

THEE (ER) ARARA

B2 —F——F+-_H="1—HIFE

20. AMB AT ZRE(

Percentage of ownership

EEREAL

2011 2010

=

Direct

BE

—E-TF
Indirect Direct Indirect

EF: B CiEE3

51% = =

51% = =

48% - -

51% = =

51% = =

51% = =

27% = 27%

53% = 53%

—BR-—FFRH 119

&)

Principal activities

TRER

Investment holding

RERR

Provision of management services

REEERS

Retailing of men's apparel

BLREZTE

Provision of management services

REEERS

Not yet commenced business

NG

Retailing of men's apparel

BIREZTE

Inactive

BEZ

Investment holding and provision
of on-line shopping, advertising
and media related services

REERRRES FBRES
R RE RS
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. RBRARZRE (&)
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued and
Name operation paid up capital Percentage of ownership Principal activities
ML,
B BRREXHE BRTRBERE BERESL TEXEH
2011 2010
-g--F “E-TF
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
H# k3 HiE i
Mainline Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of - 51% - - Retailing of men'’s apparel
HK$1 each
BRERDA B BREEEE 1T BLRETE
100/ & @R
More Chance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 51% - - Not yet commenced business
HK$1 each
SEERAR &b BREEBE 1T EENGEE=ES
1R &R
New Onward Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 51% - - Not yet commenced business
HK$1 each
EHRRAA BE SREEEEITZ CENGE
TREBR
On Bright Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 51% - - Retailing of apparel
HK$1 each
BEERAA B SREESEITZ REZTE
TRE AR
On Well Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 51% - - Retailing of apparel
HK$1 each
EEFRAA &b BREEBE 1T RETE
1R &R
Ratio Knitting Factory Limited Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary shares of - 99% - - Investment holding and
HK$1 each manufacturing and trading of
high-end swimwear and related
garment products
BB ERERAR B BREEEE 1T REZRREEREERmkE
500,0008% % &R A RARIREE R
Shining Team Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 51% - - Not yet commenced business
HK$1 each
BEARAA &b BREEBE 1T EENGEE=ES
1R &R
Top Achiever Investments Limited BVI 100 ordinary shares of - 51% - - Not yet commenced business
("Top Achiever”) US$1 each
Top Achiever Investments Limited KRRAHS BREBIETZ AR IR E %
([Top Achiever | ) 1008% & 8 A%
Top-Alitalia (Int'l) Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of - 51% - - Retailing of men'’s apparel
HK$1 each
BL(BR)BERAR B BREEEE 1T BLRETE
100/ & @R
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EoF——

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

L

Yofiel International Group Limited
FRERSEERAF
*Global Post E-Commerce
Trading Limited (" Global Post”)
RHEEEH ORI BRAR *
(M&H])
IFIm SR BRARERAR
("IPmEsR")

TFm &R HARERD A
(NIPmEs])

beis
—~ o
=
H:F
bl
=t
s af
=nl
>
el

* The English name of this company represents management’s best
efforts in translating the Chinese name of this company as no

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
EMARALILE
BRREXBE

Hong Kong

BB

PRC

HE

PRC

HhE

PRC

B

English name has been registered.

Global Post, ;TFIH &% and B 3=#| 4 are wholly-owned

Issued and
paid up capital

BERTRARRA

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
SREBEE T
10,0008 & & ik

Registered capital of
RMB4,000,000/ paid up
capital of RMB4,000,000
HMERARE
4,000,0007T,/ 242
R 7% A R #4,000,0007T

Registered capital of
HK$9,500,000/ paid up
capital of HK$8,100,000
9,500,007t/ B &2
FRZR7%8,100,0007T

Registered capital of
HK$8,000,000/paid up
capital of HK$3,296,640
8,000,000t/ B #i2
R H513,296,6407T

foreign enterprises established in the PRC.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.

Ft-—A=+—HIFE

—BR-—FFRH 121

20. AMBATIZRE (&

Percentage of ownership

EEREAL
2011 2010

S —3-%%

Direct Indirect Direct

BE EE3 B

= 99% =

- 100% -

= 99% =

= 99% =

Indirect

CiEE3

100%

THEFEMAK

RN ER

Principal activities

TRER

Trading of swimwear

BRKE

Provision of on-line shopping
services

REUR EBMRY

Inactive

BEX

Not yet commenced business

NG

* ARMAREEFMEXE R B A E]
ZEXEEBEEBBERAL N ARFXE

RE TP m &5 RRENE TR R B
VZINEBERE-

TEARERXE BE

B2 B AT
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. tHEEREE
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEF T BT T
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FELMRAEFH  IRKAE 43,325 43,325
Less: impairment losses B OREE R (43,325) (43,325)
Unlisted equity securities were carried at cost less impairment EtERAFHFL BN ERMSEE AT
as they do not have a quoted market price in an active market HHRE MAXTEITRERI SEMETE I
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. T RR AR RE 55 AR ASRURUE B B
In the absence of quoted market price in an active market, Hp D ERMiGcmsmE EFEEE
the directors determine whether the Group's investments BERRBERZERE BESOHEM
in unlisted equity securities are impaired by considering LHBERRRERRIZERRE BEAR
information from a variety of sources, including the latest SERIELTMRAZTLF 2KEBSRIE-
management financial information and the performance of HRREERARZERZ MG HERNE
the investee company. Due to the changes in market condition HE-ZT-ZTF+-A=+—HLFE"
of the business of the investee company, an impairment #97% #543,325,0007T 2 8% B A LA 5 8 A i
of approximately HK$43,325,000 was made against the HESREE-

available-for-sale financial assets during the year ended 31
December 2010.
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22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
Group
KEH

2011 2010

—E——F —T-FF

HK$000 HK$000

BT T JBEBEF T

Raw materials JR#1 %4 7,167 5,268

Work in progress F B 11,474 3,288

Finished goods SR o 7,273 9,475

Merchandises ANEE P o 51,282 =

77,196 18,031

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. ERE S R HEAMIRM
Group Company
X5HE NN

2011 2010 2011 2010

—E-——F —T-TF —E-——F —T-ZF

HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

BETFT BETT BETT BETTT

Trade and bills receivables EWE FEF R EZE 23,830 31,677 - =
Prepayments, deposits and BT 30~ & &

other receivables Hi R 32,189 55,991 350 6,037

56,019 87,668 350 6,037
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EWESZREMERR (£Z)

As at 31 December 2010, trade and bills receivables included
an amount due from a related company, China Outdoor Media
Group Limited, of approximately HK$377,000. A director,
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, had significant influence over
the related company and was a director and a substantial
shareholder of the related company.

The Group normally allows credit terms to customers
except for retail customers ranging from 30 to 75 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the
directors.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

Current to 30 days REFE30K
31 - 90 days 31RE90K
91 - 180 days 91 RE180K
Over 180 days BB 180K

As at 31 December 2011, an allowance was made for

estimated irrecoverable trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$1,000 (2010: HK$4,381,000).

RZZTE—ZEFF+_A=1+—H EKES
AR EERERBERRRHE NS
SEAER R A Z B U FRIE LB 377,000
ToBRRERACEHHEELARABEX
HEN WANREERFRZESEREE
A& o

EEBET AEEAFTFPZEERAN
FI0ET5K  ETERPRIN AEERN
REFBERENIREERURE-BEETE
iz B m A S R

RERRAHF 2 REE SRR EREMER
B R T

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—g—-% -2-%F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BETFT
14,084 16,419
6,066 10,318
2,266 2,888
1,414 2,052
23,830 31,677

R-ZT——F+-A=+—8 AfEzT
e ERE SRR R E MR &
HBHBEEI000L (ZE—ZF 5K
4,381,0007T) °
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. BRESZ REMERR (&)
Reconciliation of allowance for trade and bills receivables: EWE SRR EBRELER:
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E2——F —ET-FF
HK$°000 HK$000
B F T BT T
At 1 January R—H—H 4,381 -
Allowance for the year F N - 4,262
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMNRB A A (4,567) —
Exchange differences MEHZRE 187 119
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1 4,381
As of 31 December 2011, trade and bills receivables of RZFE——F+_A=+—H EKES
approximately HK$5,060,000 (2010: HK$15,898,000) were BRI & BIR 4 A7 15,060,000 (ZF—
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of T 4F : 75 #15,898,0007T ) E %4 BB I £ R,
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of BeolbFRIFEE T MR L8k 2
default. The ageing analysis of these trade and bills receivables EFEM- HLERKESRARERE 2R
is as follows: RO :
Group
rEE
2011 2010
— —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Up to 90 days 90K LA 1,380 11,125
91 — 180 days 91 RE180K 2,266 2,887
Over 180 days BB 180K 1,414 1,886
5,060 15,898
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23.

24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s trade and bills receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BT
United States dollars ETT
Macau Pataca YR TT
RMB AR
Total FER

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH
BALANCES

The Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits
pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. The deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and arranged at fixed interest rates range from 0.19% to
0.20% p.a. and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate
risk.

As at 31 December 2011, the bank and cash balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$1,636,000 (2010: HK$303,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale

and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

BE—F——F+=A=f—AULFE

23. ERE S REMARNR (&)

AR BKESEAREEATIER
REN

2011 2010

—B--F —E-FF

HK$°000 HK$°000

BETT ABETIT

13,262 557

9,639 -

921 -

8 31,120

23,830 31,677

24 EEFRTERRBITRRAEET

AEEDERRTER/EER TRITZ
Tk UBUSRTTHR TAKEER - %57
AT AR /B AL B120.19%%£0.20% 2
BEFHMEAE ZFEFREARFERF
(ERAESE

R-ZE——F+-_HA=+—H AEEI
AR BB ZRITRIBCETLHR/BE
1,636,0007T (= F — & F : & #303,000
TL) o A REAZ R F B 2 SNEE IR
1&O R AEE EERNEETERTE -
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 ERESZREMERR
Group Company
r5E VNG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
- “T-%F —E—-fF —T-TF
HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000
BETTT BETFT BETT BETFT
Trade payables ERESER 22,109 4,023 - -
Due to a director EN—2EZE 3,000 = 3,000 =
Due to an ex-director EN—RAEE - 3,936 - 6,076
Due to a substantial EN—2EEZRER
shareholder 4,495 - 4,000 -
Other payables H R AR K 4,11 12,154 13,761 13,122
71,375 20,113 20,761 19,198
The amounts due to a director, an ex-director and a substantial B —REE —RAEEN—HBETER
shareholder are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed R RN AEIRH - 0 B R EREFER-

terms of repayment.

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of RKWERBMZEMNE SRFIKRR DT
receipt of goods, is as follows: T
Group
rEE
2011 2010
S —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$000
B FT BT T
Current to 30 days BB 230K 7,295 1,748
31 -90 days 31 RE9I0K 10,758 229
91 - 180 days 91 RKE180K 3,868 170
Over 180 days HBiB180K 188 1,876
22,109 4,023
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 25. ENEZREMEBR(2)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are AEBCENESIERFUTIER, RS
denominated in the following currencies: I :

2011 2010

— —T-TF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Hong Kong dollars BTT 18,160 155

United States dollars =TT 872 —

Euro B 7T 5 _

RMB AR 3,072 3,868

Total Gk 22,109 4,023




THEH (ZR) ARAR —TB——5FH§ 129

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 3R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

26. PROMISSORY NOTES 26. A RE
Group and Company
AEBRAQT
2011 2010
—E——F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At 1 January Kn—H—H 12,400 12,400
Fair value of promissory notes issued A Y BE Easy Timef& B8 1T
upon acquisition of Easy Time B2 AYE (HiE35a))
(note 35(a)) 38,565 -
50,965 12,400

Interest charged W ER F) 2 1,547 —

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 52,512 12,400

Classified as: DER:

Non-current (note (a)) RS (Hat@) 40,112 =

Current (note (b)) B (HaLb)) 12,400 12,400

52,512 12,400

Notes: Mt :

(@ Non-current promissory notes with principal amount of (a) 72 # A7 H550,000,0007T 2 37t B AT R
HK$50,000,000 shall be repayable in one lump sum on the fifth BARANSRBRTEHZELBF TR
anniversary of the date of the issue of the promissory notes at no —RIEER - ZF AN R */F?/AIHEW
interest. These promissory notes are stated initially at their fair value B HIRRINEERA SRR RB AT H - B
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective BRFI% /5.325% °
interest method. The effective interest rate is 5.325%.

(b)  Promissory notes due for settlement within 12 months as at 31 b ANFBER-_F-——FR-_F-FTF+_-A
December 2011 and 2010 are unsecured and denominated in Hong =+—HETZEARZBMBN  RAEE
Kong dollars. These promissory notes are arranged at fixed interest - DB REBAL - R FANRER 2 BT FH
rate of 2% (2010: 2%) p.a. and expose the Group to fair value KR2% (ZF—FF 2% ) MARBAANRE
interest rate risk. DR EREER -
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 27.

The convertible bonds in principal amount of HK$ 12,500,000
were issued on 30 June 2011 as part of the consideration for
the acquisition of Charmston. The bonds are convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time commencing from
three days after the date of issue up to their settlement date.
The bonds were convertible into a maximum of 44,964,028
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.278 per share.

If the bonds have not been converted, they will be redeemed
at par on 29 June 2012 at no interest.

The fair value of the convertible bonds has been split between
the liability component and an equity component, as follows:

R ES

MNZBE——FXA=1THRBITAELE RS
#12,500,0007T 2 F] #2 IR (& 75 1 /= W B 44
R E-EHFURNESHEITHER
“REBEEE A HBREEAREER AR
NEIERR - EHFIRERAK0.278TTE R
B %44,964,028 8 AN N R E AR -

WEFRETESR BN _F——FX
AZ+NABREETFSED-

ARBREE 2 AT EERE G RiEZ
MDA

Group and Company

AEEREAF
2011 2010
—E——F —T-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Fair value of convertible bonds issued NI S S S v

upon acquisition of Charmston AR ESR 2 A FE
(note 35(b)) (B13E35()) 13,238 -
Equity component W B (1,190) -
Liability component at date of issue RETHBRZBEEHD 12,048 -
Interest charged B A2 228 -
Liability component at 31 December Rt+tZ_A=+—BZaEHH 12,276 —

The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an
effective interest rate of 3.75% to the liability component for
the 12-month period since the bonds were issued.

FRREBFERBERTESFE T A
RREODERF X3 75EFE -
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28. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Secured bank loans
Trust receipt loans
Other loan

BEMRITER
SREWIEE R
Hip &R

The bank and other loans are repayable as follows:

Term loans subject to a repayment on
demand clause
On demand or within one year

RRNAREK
E &R

THEH (ZR) ARAR —TB——5FH§

Ft-—A=+—HIFE

28. MITREMER

Group

rEH
2011
B
HK$000
EBETFT

2010
—E—FF
HK$'000
BT T

7,607 -
22,288 =
15,000 =

44,895 =

RITREMERHERINAT :

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFTT BETT

{5 A9

7,607 -
37,288 =

44,895 —
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28. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other loans
at 31 December 2011 are denominated in the following

28. RITREMER (&)

AEBRITEEMEFR_-T——F+=
A=+—BzZEEENTIIERE:

currencies:
Hong Kong United States

dollars dollars Total
B ESH @t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T EET T
Bank loans RITEH 7,607 = 7,607
Trust receipt loans FABEER 22,027 261 22,288
Other loan HiE X 15,000 = 15,000
44,634 261 44,895

The other loan is unsecured, interest bearing at the prevailing
Hong Kong dollar prime rate of The Hongkong and Shanghai
Corporation Limited and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The interest rates at 31 December are as follows:

Bank loans RITER
Trust receipt loans ErEUIRE R
Other loan HAth & 5K

HEERSEER REELBESRT
BRARFAHRBITEEREBENKRFE
MEREETFEEREAR-

RTZA=t—BZHERWET:

2011 2010

—E——F —E-FF

4.75% to N/A 33 A
6.75% p.a.
BFA4TIS%E
6.75%

3.75% to N/A 33 A
6.75% p.a.
BE375%ZE
6.75%

5% p.a. N/AT 3 3

BF5%
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28. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 28. RITREMER (#)

All bank and other loans are arranged at floating rates, thus FIBRITREMEFNZB A ELZH - K

exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. ARIEAMmMARZIR MR E K =@ g

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s banking facilities were RZFE——F+ZA=+—H AKER

secured by: TEEBR TIISBEEER:

(@) charges over time deposits of the Group; (@ AEETHFRER:

(b) certain land and buildings held by a company owned by by BETH2EMBRARN—(ESHA
a director of certain non-wholly owned subsidiaries; WARRANE T T RIEF:

(c) personal guarantees executed by directors of certain non- ( BHTHEZ2EWBRARZESIEHOEA
wholly owned subsidiaries; EIR

(d) corporate guarantees executed by certain subsidiaries d) ETHBRARIRETIIHEZEMRBAF
and a company beneficially owned by a director of certain W—UEEEERENARELENR
non-wholly owned subsidiaries; and AR &

(e) guarantees executed by the Hong Kong Special (e) BARRIITHEATIEL R -

Administrative Region Government.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had undrawn borrowing RZE——F+ZA=+—H AKEX
facilities of approximately HK$12,511,000. A EE#E%12,511,0007T °
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Within one year
In the second to fifth
years, inclusive

Less: Future finance
charges

Present value of lease
obligations

29. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

—E PR
F_ZRF
(REERWE)

B RRBEER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% & M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——F+=-H=+—HIFZF

29. MEHEESRE

Less: Amount due for
settlement within
12 months (shown
under current
liabilities)

Amount due for
settlement after
12 months

BT —EARENEER

(FIRRBRERT)

T EAKENEE

Group
rEE
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BEAENK BEHRENRAE
2011 2010 2011 2010
8-  -T-F%  -%--%  -T-Tf
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEF BETT BEF EETT
80 - 65 -
206 - 190 -
286 - 255 -
(31) - N/A -
255 - 255 -
(65) -
190 -

It is the Group's policy to lease its motor vehicle under finance

leases. The lease term is five years. At 31 December 2011,

the effective borrowing rate was 3.50%. Interest rate is fixed

at the contract date and thus exposes the Group to fair value

interest rate risk. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and

no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments. At the end of the lease term, the Group has the

option to purchase the motor vehicle at a nominal price.

AEERRHEEREBHE TN = -H
EPRREF R _E—F+tA=1+—
B BREERNER3.50%  MERELH
HifgEE - AEBRMAR A FENXRER -
MERESREEEEEEFEL YEY
SABENRLH -REEMR ~&EE
RIZEERE IR
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29. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (Continued)

All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

The Group's finance lease payables are secured by the lessor’s
title to the leased asset.

30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

At 1 January 2010, 31 December

THEH (ER) ARAR —TB-——5FH§

B F——F A+ —HILFE

29. MEMERNARE(H)

AR EHEE RN KRG ABETE
AEERERERNFKBAAGHEABEE
BEMMERELER-

30. EERAEME

Group and Company

2010 and 1 January 2011 —E-ZTFTA=T—-BkK
“Z—%—-H—H
Acquisition of Easy Time YeBE Easy Time (A77£35(a))
(note 35(a))
Acquisition of Charmston WG (W a35))
(note 35(b))
Addition/(reversal) of provisions ~ Bf&12 i,/ (B [El)

At 31 December 2011

RZE——F+-_A=+—H

AEBRART
Provision for PRC employee
long service severance
payments compensation
(note (a)) (note (b)) Total
hEES
RERKERE BREE
(Kriz() (Kriz ) Azt
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT BT BT
472 4,100 4,572
139 - 139
343 (169) 174
954 3,931 4,885
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30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Provision for long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
on the employees’ final salary and years of services, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plan that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does
not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

PRC employee severance compensation

Pursuant to the new PRC Labour Contract Law which became
effective on 1 January 2008, the Group is required to pay the
severance compensation to its employees if the employment
contract expires and is not renewed unless the Group has offered
the employment contract on the same terms and conditions but the
offer is rejected by the employee.

Under the Labour Contract Law, the severance compensation is
calculated based on one month'’s salary for each year of employment
completed by the employee and is capped at 12 months’ salary or
12 times 300% of the average monthly salary of the previous year at
the place where the employer is located, whichever is lower. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group has made the provision for
severance compensation for the existing employees in the PRC.

BE—F——F+=A=f—AULFE

30. EERAEE (&

Bt

(a)

(b)

REBRBSRE

REEERBIED AREANE THERLT
EARERE R AF2E TIESBBER
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31. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by
the Group:

A E——Ff A=+ —HIFE

THEH (ZR) ARAR —B-——5FH§ 137

3. EEBEAE

MAREEIAZTEELCHEBERE:

Revaluation of

plant and
machinery
B E R
WeEE M
HK$ 000
BT T
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—FTF—H—H 15,147
Credit to other comprehensive income REREMEEYES S
for the year (8,026)
Credit to profit or loss for the year (note 10) WFWIB=HIZ (A1aE10) (252)
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 RZ-ZZT—ZFF+_-_A=+—HK
—F——F—H—H 6,869
Acquisition of Easy Time (note 35(a)) Wi B Easy time (#17£35(a)) 280
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEH B AR (#iE36) (3,601)
Charge to other comprehensive income TS A EL i 2 T s 1 BR
for the year 1
Credit to profit or loss for the year (note 10) FFEWIBZH (Aa£10) (3,324)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZB——F+-_H=+—H 225

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$28,497,000 (2010:
HK$13,588,000) available for offset against future profits
and are subject to the approval of the respective tax
authorities. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$2,436,000 and HK$5,501,000 that will expire in 2015
and 2016 respectively. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
subsidiaries are insignificant.

R EER  NEB 2 KA RATHE KR
R A 2 B IE B B 40 BB 28,497,0007T
— T4 : #¥13,588,0007T ) © B/ES
H AR SREEIOE AR ERTERT 2R
FomFm WHEELERIEEEERER
BRBEEBBEEEI RS —RF R
T— NF | 2 #)74582,436,0007T & B
5,501,0007T 2 518 o H th £ 18 &5 18 sk S BR

AFEMBARMEL 2R ZMHFE

go
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B
Group and Company
AEBRAEAT
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T JEET T
Authorised: JEIE
14,000,000,000 (2010: 10,000,000,000) 14,000,000,0000% ( —Z & —F4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 10,000,000,0008% ) & %
(2010: HK$0.05) each (note (a)) EERK0.057T (ZE—FF:
B #0.057T) 2 EiBA
(Htit(a)) 700,000 500,000
2,000,000,000 (2010: Nil) convertible 2,000,000,0000% (= F —Z 4 :
non-voting preference shares of &) BREEEY0.15T
HK$0.15 (2010: Nil) each —E-TFEE)Z
(note (a)) Al I ERE B AR
(Htit(a)) 300,000 -~
1,000,000 500,000
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 32. BA&(£&)
Group and Company
AEERAEAT
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT JET T
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
3,097,093,296 (2010: 2,038,055,819) 3,097,093,296f% (ZZE —ZT 4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 2,038,055,8190% ) &A%
(2010: HK$0.05) each EEBK0.057T (ZE—FF:
7 0.057T ) 2 EiAk 154,854 101,903
1,303,333,333 (2010: Nil) convertible 1,303,333,333 ( —E—F 4 :
non-voting preference shares of =) iR EmES%0.15T
HK$0.15 (2010: Nil) each (ZE—EZF:8) 2
AR EEERE R 195,500 —

350,354 101,903
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 32. BRA (&)
A summary of the movements in the issued share capital of RARBBE_Z—ZEER_FT——F+=
the Company during the years ended 31 December 2010 and A=1T—BIEHEEBTRAZEHHE
2011 is as follows: R
Number of
convertible non-
Number of  voting preference
ordinary shares of shares of
Note HK$0.05 each HK$0.15 each Par value
SREE
SREE BE0.157T 2
B#0.05T2 TRRERFE
Mt EERYE BEREE H{E
‘000 ‘000 HK$ 000
FiE FiE BETT
At 1 January 2010 W-Z2-2F-F—A 1,858,056 - 92,903
Placement of new shares B & ¥R D () 180,000 - 9,000
At 31 December 2010 and RZZ-TF+-A=+—H
1 January 2011 k=Z——%—-H—H 2,038,056 - 101,903
Issue of shares for acquisition of M8 Easy Time i &7 & {7
Easy Time © 533,333 1,733,333 286,666
Issue of shares for acquisition of 4T AL EF I 217 AR 17
Charmston (@) 53,957 - 2,698
Issue of commencement RIIRBERRND
fee shares (e) 11,236 - 562
Issue of new shares RITHRG (e 30,511 - 1,525
Conversion of convertible ABAARERRE
non-voting preference shares BE ) 430,000 (430,000) (43,000

3,097,093 1,303,333 350,354
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting held on 28 March
2011, the Company increased its authorised share capital by
HK$500,000,000, by the creation of 4,000,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each and 2,000,000,000 convertible
non-voting preference shares of HK$0.15 each. Each convertible
non-voting preference share is convertible into one ordinary share of
HK$0.05 each of the Company.

On 7 October 2010, JL Investments Capital Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, placed 180,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each in the Company to an independent third party
at a price of HK$0.20 each. JL Investments Capital Limited then
subscribed for a total 180,000,000 new shares of HK$0.05 each
in the Company at HK$0.20 per share. The subscription was
completed on 21 October 2010. The net proceed of approximately
HK$36,000,000 was used as general working capital of the Group.
The shares rank pari passu in all respects with the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue on the date of allotment.

On 31 March 2011, 1,733,333,333 new convertible non-voting
preference shares of HK$0.15 each were issued as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Easy Time. The fair value of the convertible non-voting preference
shares, at the date of issue, was approximately HK$485,333,000.
An amount of approximately HK$225,333,000 was credited to the
share premium account.

On 28 December 2011, 533,333,333 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each were issued as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Easy Time. The fair
value of those 533,333,333 ordinary shares issued was determined
by reference to the published share price of HK$0.280 at the date of
acquisition of Easy Time.

A E——Ff A=+ —HIFE

THEE (ER) ARAA

e

32. RA&(#&)

Bz -

(a)

BER-_ZE——F=ZA -+ N\BRITZK
REFRIRE - AR A% 15 5%4,000,000,000
P& & B% T (B 75 #50.05)0 2 BRI E B AR - A K
2,000,000,0000% & % F & 7 #0.157C 2 7]
AR IR AR ST AR - LA TE IRANIE A S
500,000,0007T © &F % 7] 44 1% 48 & 52 48 18 55 A%
AIEEIARK AN N Rl B R E BB 150.057T 2 — R
Limak

RZE—ZTF+ALA ARAREERRE
JL Investments Capital LimitediZ & %5
0202l EBMBILE =7 HELXRA
180,000,000% & iR I &% #0.05 7T & @A A%
3 » JL Investments Capital Limited# i1 JA & B%
7S 150.207T REE AN A 7] 4224180,000,000 &
AR (B #50.05 2 #TAk D - REBSEHER =
T—ZF+AZt+—HEK -FIBEREBFE
#97% 36,000,000t AEAR S B —REEE
o ERMERATNEEBBREITZE
ARNE T EZERSERZ-

R-ZBE——E=A=+—B KAQA T
1,733,333,3330R & AR E B B %0.157T 2 #7
AR ARG R B SE IR - fE AU B Easy Time
EHEHITRAZHBHORE -RETEH:
AMRELEEELARZATENREE
485,333,0007T, © 9 75 #6225,333,0007T 2 7
AR 5= (B R

R-ZEBE——F+=-A=+/\B ~QFET
533,333,333 B RAEB#E0.057T 2 FTE B
B AU B Easy TimeR 202 B 1TRY A 2 25
SR8 - 3%5533,333,333W B AT 2 LA

NEET2E W EEasy TimeE HE A 2%
B/ 0.280 T ME E °
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

On 30 June 2011, 53,956,835 new ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
were issued as part of the consideration for the acquisition of a 51%
equity interest in Charmston. The fair value of those 53,956,835
ordinary shares issued was determined by reference to the published
share price of HK$0.212 at the date of acquisition of Charmston.

On 17 May 2011, the Company and SpringTree Special
Opportunities Fund, LP (the “Investor”) entered into a share
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) in relation
to the subscription of the shares in the Company up to a total
amount of HK$165,000,000.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Company paid the
Investor a non-refundable commencement fee in the amount
of 1.3% of the aggregate amount of the investment under the
Subscription Agreement, to be satisfied by way of issuance of
11,236,249 ordinary shares credited as fully paid to the Investor on
10 August 2011.

On 11 August 2011, the Investor subscribe for 30,511,060 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each. The subscription was completed
on 8 September 2011. The net proceed of approximately
HK$4,000,000 was used as general working capital of the Group.
The shares rank pari passu in all respects with the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue on the date of allotment.

The Company also granted to the Investor 20,000,000 options to
purchase shares in the Company at HK$0.293 per share. Each option
shall be exercisable at any time after the time of its grant and prior
to the date that is 36 calendar months after the payment of the first
tranche of shares issued in relation to the Subscription Agreement,
after which time it will lapse.

The Subscription Agreement was terminated on 22 September
2011.

BE—F——F+=A=f—AULFE

32. RA& (&)

Hret: (&)

(d)

R-ZE——FANA=Z+TH AXRAETT
53,956,835k & i [ {8 % #0.057T 2 ¥ & i
B (EBUREBHEETS1 % RAEZ D RIEB - 2 E
53,956,835/ B BT E @R 2 ATFEILE
BT E B E Afh 2 RESB0.212TmE
Eo

RZZE—-——FAA+EtH XAAHA
SpringTree Special Opportunities Fund, LP
(MREEIRRBARAESHKZZEE
165,000,0007T 2 % 13 71 3Z A% 17 78 & 175 7%
([REWH])

BIRRE R ZE - ANQRIAEREE N —F A
REZHBDER SEARBHREBETZE
BHBEZ13% BERARAREEHITR S
—FN\A+BARIAHE 211,236,249
BEE @AY 2 5 T A AT o

R=F——FNA+—HB KEERBE
30,511,060 FEEH0.057T 2 ¥ iBAR
RESHEER=_T——FNANAZEK T8
FRIEFEE 4976 4,000,0007T B BEARSEE 2
—RBEEES - RERMEARRFREEA
2z BBETEERNEHEZA RS-

XA B IR A 2 & & 1% 20,000,00017 i AR 7
REREHE0293THEEARRERD - FHE
PRAER N E R B E RN R E HHEET
Z BB 123618 /E A 2 B H AT (£ i 7
TAT6E - HEHERA

REHZENR_ZE——FAA=-TZHAK
1E o
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 32. RA&(#&)

Notes: (Continued)

(f)  On 18 April 2011 and 5 September 2011, 380,000,000 and
50,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each were issued as a result
of the conversion of 380,000,000 and 50,000,000 convertible non-
voting preference shares respectively.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as
total liabilities (including current and non-current liabilities as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less
cash and cash equivalents. Total equity represents the equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Hret: (&)

fH R=ZF——FHNA+NAR=Z——FNA
1 H * 380,000,0008% % 50,000,0000% & % 74
#0.057T 2 @Ak E 5 5l i #:380,000,000%
£:50,000,0000% AT 2 % 45 15 22 42 (8 55 Ak i 5%
1Te

AEBEEEEAZ BN AREARERE
a2z WRBRREERDRE SEM
BafsAARRNESE THFREERR
BUARUE B AR ©

REFIFHBERNRE AEE A EBR
BENTRRERZBRESE REEXRTR
RBTHBROILEEENRDER -

HEEANEMAR - AEBREERE
Lo RESERE AN o by R ME 3 FRR A 21
BRERTE -ERFRNREER (BREE
MBEARRARARZRE RIEREEE) R

RelReFEEBFE HRERER
B M IEARRR PR 2 e o
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 32. A& (#&)
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2011 and 2010 are as RZE——F R —FF+A=1+—
follows: AzEEABELENT:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HKS$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
Total debt (EUrEE 195,356 64,261
Less: cash and cash equivalents B REeRREFEEE (78,516) (40,603)
Net debt (EUrE 116,840 23,658
Total equity T AR 520,696 198,333
Gearing ratio BEERBLEE 22% 12%
The increase in gearing ratio during the year ended 31 EEABLHERBE_Z——F+=A
December 2011 resulted primarily from the increase of =T+ —BIEFEEMEZHANER Al
promissory notes, convertible bonds and bank and other IREFH DA R IRIT R A A B FRA I AT B
loans.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital AREEIW T ZEREMRINEBIEN A E R E

requirements. Ko
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33. RESERVES 33. &
(a) Group () &&E
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements rEBzRFREREEHSECRES
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of THBER MR RERZ GRS |mEK
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of =25

changes in equity.

(b) Company (b) &A2TF
Equity-
settled
share-based Capital
Share payment  redemption Accumulated  Convertible
premium reserve reserve losses bond reserve Total
NRREE
R AER D13
R EE %fEE EXBEERE 2ER B 5t

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
BETT BETT BEFT BETT BETT BETT

At 1 January 2010 RZZ—ZF—-H—H 166,678 12,809 150 (89,851) = 89,786
Loss for the year FREE - - - (113,718) = (113,718)
Issue of shares on placement AL & B & 1T (7

(note 32(b)) (Bizt32(b)) 27,000 - - - - 27,000
Share options lapsed ERERNERIE

during the year - (8,539) - 8,539 - -

At31December2010and R=ZZ—TF

1 January 2011 +-A=+—HRk
—T——F
—HA—H 193,678 4,270 150 (195,030) - 3,068
Loss for the year FREE - - - (271,377) - (271,377)
Issue of convertible bonds ~ E{T AR EH
(note 27) (Hi27) - - - - 1,190 1,190
Issue of consideration shares 47 B
(note 32 (c) and (d)) (Hfat32(c) R(d)) 356,741 - - - - 356,741
Issue of new shares BIIERG
(note 32(e) (H1:232()) 1,913 - - - - 1,913
Conversion of convertible 318 AT A% 4 4% =
non-voting preference BER
shares (note 32(f)) (HaE32(r) 43,000 = - - = 43,000
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%F
+-A=t—H 595,332 4,270 150 (466,407) 1,190 134,535
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33. RESERVES (Continued) 33. & (&)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves () REZHEERAMN
(i) Share premium account (i) RtzzER
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, RIEFRSHERRVE RXRFIKR
the funds in the share premium account of the NRERZESADIKTART
Company are distributable to the shareholders of IR - HEERREHE S AR B B H1% -
the Company provided that immediately following RAARIGEERERAEERHE
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be B2 &7 o

distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

(ii) Equity-settled share-based payment reserve (i) UBBEEZRGEZEENF

%

The equity-settled share-based payment reserve NS E 2 IR BET R
represents the fair value of the actual or estimated ISR B 3t B 5 SR 2R M R 3(s) Pt
number of unexercised options granted to directors, CERBEE REZNMERZ
employees and consultants of the Group recognised GEBRER  MASEES &
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted BRERRTARITEZ AR
for equity-settled share-based payments in note 3(s) B2RDABERNR BRI
to the financial statements. AAFE

(iii) Translation reserve (iii) E X fFE
The translation reserve comprises all foreign M ERERESINEBIE
exchange differences arising from the translation WMERFMEEZFTBERZ8 2
of the financial statements of foreign operations. RERBI B RRNE3QFI 2
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the SETHRERE -

accounting policies set out in note 3(c) to the

financial statements.
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33. RESERVES (Continued)
() Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) Plant and machinery revaluation reserve

The plant and machinery revaluation reserve has
been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for plant and machinery
in note 3(d) to the financial statements.

(v) Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal
value of the shares repurchased which was paid out
of the distributable reserves of the Company.

(vi) Convertible bond reserve

Convertible bond reserve represents the equity
component of convertible bonds issued by the
Company and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for convertible bonds in
note 3(n) to the financial statements.

34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(a) Share option scheme operated by the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, executives,
officers, directors, business consultants, suppliers,
customers, legal and financial advisers of the Company
and the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 18 March 2008 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

THEE (ZR) FRAA —B——FF#H 147

33. filifle (&)

(0 REZMEREW(E)

(iv) BERBEELWEE

BE R R EAEEE LR
I 2 AR BB 75 3R 3R M 5E3(d)FT
Atz FR s M es iR A 2 &5t IR
REZIR o

(v) EFXEEHE
ERNEEFEFEREERAARA IR
fh fR S A~ 7 (2 B8 2 AR £ TR ©

(vi) FTRREF#HRE
ABBESFHEEREARRC ET
ZABRBES 2@ HE

R 3% B 75 ¥R R B FE3(n) A At <2 7T
BBESEA 2 ST BREIE -

4. DEZEHE Z2RHRERIK

(a) ARRIFIEE ZBIRESE

AEEEERE —AERER S ([
2 URFLERRBALAEERKLE

RNELERMZ A ERSRE-BE
R2REBEARBRARFNER
AlZEBEFBER THAR B
BAR B XBER HER T
F ARG - LAt EIR ZTE
NFE=ZA+/N\BER BRIETIAZH
HER] R Z AR+ FINEER -
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34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 34, UEZEECROBERGR (&)

(Continued)

(a) ARRFTKE ZBKREE (&

(a) Share option scheme operated by the Company

(Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of shares options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders” approval in
a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$10 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than five years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

RIEZETS) RSEER T 2 RITE
BRERZHEER —KITE  AAF
PEMRERE TG 210% 1
TEARN REZAEMTETA
B2 EE 2 A EITRMDZABRR
RARBUEMEHRE BTN Z21% °
BT EMEaI R < BRERES
BERINIRRA S -

BRYARAISEEMBEBRARZE
- FETBABREERRERKE -
ARG BELERTESI L L
SN EREBEFARRIEERR B L
EMMITE S 2 IBARAE - S E (T ] R BG
RNERT =8 ARz KR #BiR
RAFBEEITIRMN 20.1%3BE (KA
BTERAARRGIROERELE)BR
75 #5,000,0007T * HETE LS IR R
N N1

AREARREE A HRI4ARAAR
BAREEE IO UEXRERT
BRI ZH - BIREREZTTEN
HEFET IRRXITEMERFALK
TERREHBREZORARESRF
HZTEZMA (MARTF)ERe
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34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(Continued)

A _E—— A=+ —HIFE

4. UESEE2ROBERIR (4)

(a) Share option scheme operated by the Company

(a) RRRFKE ZWRES (&)

(Continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options; (i) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Details of the share options outstanding during the year

BRECITEERESETE ETR
ERATZERE: (VARRBRHR
R BIREZ A B BIER 2
B (iR AR X B IR IR I A
EXNBMARER S BERATZF
HWTE : R(iARBIRD R LB
BREENBSHZEE:

FEREY N TR A A RS AR
RE ERENER] -

FARITEZBREFBFNOT
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are as follows:

Number of share
options held as at

Name or category 1 January 2011 and Exercise
of grantees Date of grant 31 December 2011 price Exercise period
R=B--F-f-BK
“2-—-%+tZA=t-H
ERABRAER Rit A H FEBREHE TEE T
HK$
BE
Employee 30 May 2008 13,412,000 0.46 30 May 2008 -
17 March 2017
E& —ZZ\ERA=TAH “ZTN\FRA=THE
“Z—t+F=At++tH
Consultants 30 May 2008 13,412,000 0.46 30 May 2008 -
17 March 2017
B —ZZ\ERA=TAH “ZTN\FRA=THE
“Z—t+F=At++tH
26,824,000
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34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 4. UESEEZROAERSR (&)
(Continued)
(a) Share option scheme operated by the Company () XAFREZEBRETSE (2)
(Continued)
2011 2010
—E——-F —E-%F
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
share average share average
options exercise price options  exercise price
IiEF IIHEF
BREHE TEE  BREHA 1B
HKS$ HK$
BY BE
Outstanding at FMEARITHE 26,824,000 0.46 80,472,000 0.46

beginning of year

Lapsed during the year FRKK - - (53,648,000) 0.46
Outstanding at end of year ~ F &K iH AR 1T{E 26,824,000 0.46 26,824,000 0.46
Exercisable at end of year AR AJ{T{# 26,824,000 0.46 26,824,000 0.46
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a REREARITEE 2 BEARHE 2 hniEF15
weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.2 years FRENFHAR2F (ZE—ZF:
(2010: 6.2 years) and the exercise price is HK$0.46 (2010: 6.2F ) RITHEE A BK046L (ZF
HK$0.46). —Z 5 B¥0467T) °

No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled FABEBEREREZTEERL

under the Scheme during the year. 1T
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 4. UESEHEZROAERSR (&)

(Continued)

(b) Options issued by a non wholly-owned subsidiary (b) —EEETEMBATRBT2BRE
Top Achiever, a non wholly-owned subsidiary, issued —RI3ER BB A FlTop Achieverst—
options to subscribe for 20% of its enlarged share capital, AR PR 4 2 B ] AR 75 38 L R R
representing 25 shares of US$1.00 each in its share AR HKE AR A 220% @ B R
capital at the end of the reporting period, for consultancy FEHARRKEBRAFR 225 FREE
services provided by a consultant. 1.00E T2 & o
Details of the options outstanding during the year are as FRBMRITEZBREFEOAT :
follows:

Number of
Number of options
options Number of held as at
Name or category held as at options granted 31 December Exercise
of grantees Date of grant 1January 2011  during the year 2011 price Exercise period
RoB-—f RoB-—f
~A-8 +2A=+-8
g ERAREZ Jiig=3
ARABBRER R AH BREHA BREHE BREHE TfEE i
HKS
Consultant 13 July 2011 13 July 2012 -
12 July 2013
B —T——F “E-——f+A+=RA%
+A+=8 - 25 25 7.80 —T—=%+A+=H
2011 2010
—E--F —T-TF
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
options exercise price options  exercise price
mELY IETH
BREHE THE  BREZE 18
HKS HKS
B B
Outstanding at FRNRARITE
beginning of year - - - -
Granted during the year ~ FRRH 25 7.80 - -
Outstanding at end of year ~ F kK i AR 1T{E 25 7.80 - —

Exercisable at end of year ~ F AR AJ{T{# - - - -
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34. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Bz F——F1 _HA=1—HIFFE

4. DESEE2ROBERIR (&)

(Continued)
(b) Options issued by a non wholly-owned subsidiary (b) —EFZTEMBLRIMBITZERE
(Continued) (%)
The options outstanding at the end of the year have PG R 8 R AT IR 2 B AR 2 N 7 5
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.53 FIr BT A1 53F (22— ZF:
years (2010: Nil) and the exercise price is HK$7.8 (2010: DIRTEERAKIST(ZE-F
HK$Nil). F:RETT) -
The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes (B T {E FBlack-ScholesiEBIE R,
pricing model. The inputs into the model are as follows: AE - ZREXZBABIERNT
2011
—E——F
Fair value per share of Top Achiever Top AchieverZ &R A F 1B HK$107,016
£1107,0167
Exercise price per share BRI1TERE HK$7.8
B H7.87T
Expected volatility TEHR R 1@ 52.93%
Expected life T8 HA <F B 1 year
15
Risk free rate A [3 o ) 2 0.18%
Expected dividend yield TEHAAR B % 0%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the
weighted average of historical volatilities of listed
companies in Hong Kong with similar market focus over
the previous 1 year. The expected life used in the model
has been adjusted, based on the Group's best estimate,
for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The options granted to the consultant were an
endorsement of the demonstrated expertise in the
fashion apparel business. The fair value of such benefit
could not be estimated reliably and as a result, the fair
value is measured by reference to the fair value of the
options granted.

BHRB BB ERE—FAER
UMBEOZ BB LM AR ZELK
8 2 DN 715 BB TE o sk AR T\ P
ZEMFHERBASER A E
& TERBIRTREERZ REMG

fEH TR -
BTEREBRED AR EREE
EBTHZIRHIET BREMNFELZ R
FEEER EMAA REL A FET
SEMROEREZ A FEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. WEBHIE L F)
(a) Easy Time (a) Easy Time

On 31 March 2011, the Group acquired the entire R—ZZT——F=A=+—0 F&5H

issued share capital of Easy Time at a consideration of W HEEasy TimeZ2 2 BHITRA - KB

HK$390,000,000. The consideration was satisfied by the 75 ¥390,000,0007T ° A A &) LA T 1)

Company in the following manner: ARZMARAE:

- as to asum of HK$260,000,000 by the way of —  #%260,000,0007CAZE 1T BT
issuance of convertible non-voting preference shares PEH0.150Tn BT A R EIR R
at an issue price of HK$0.150 per share; BB

- as to asum of HK$50,000,000 by the way of — 7 ¥50,000,0007T LA B 17 E A 2=
issuance of promissory notes; and BXfT: R

- as to the balance of HK$80,000,000 by the way of —  BAFXE%80,000,0007T LA B 1T (B
issuance of the ordinary shares at an issue price of B 0150 BT EBR X
HK$0.150 per share. fit o

Easy Time was principally engaged in investment holding, Easy Timex EX FHREITAR - HHT B

with its subsidiaries engaged in the manufacture and sale NEREBEAXREEREE -

of swimsuits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——F+=-H=+—HIFZF

35. WEBMIE N R (&)
(a) Easy Time (4)

RUEE B 8 - ATUC BB Easy Timefss B 7]
BRAEERBENATEET

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) Easy Time (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Easy Time Group acquired as at its date of acquisition is

as follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before Fair value
combination adjustments Fair value
&0t
®UEE S REE AVLERR AYLE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T BEFT
Net assets acquired: Wi FEE:
Property, plant and equipment ~ #1% « iR K& fE 841 3,399 4,240
Inventories e 15,507 15,507
Trade and other receivables B E 5 R H A ERRK 16,055 16,055
Bank and cash balances BOIRASET 24,755 24,755
Trade and other payables JERTE 5 R E A BR K (16,340) (16,340)
Employee benefit obligations ~ EE&EFIEE (4,572) (4,572)
Current tax liabilities ERIBaE (6,769) = (6,769)
Deferred tax liabilities ERTIBAE - (280) (280)
Net assets BEFE 29,477 3,119 32,596
Non-controlling interests IR (331)
Goodwill EES 640,966
Total consideration BRIE 673,231
Total consideration, satisfied by: 488 LA T I R 3 f+
Fair value of convertible AR RS REE LR
non-voting preference shares (B#32(c))
(note 32 (c) 485,333
Fair value of ordinary shares R AN )
(note 32 (c)) (Hat32(c)) 149,333
Fair value of promissory notes & Z4g 7 A&
(note 26) (H1it26) 38,565
673,231
Net cash inflow arising on BEEENRERAFE:
acquisition:
Cash and cash equivalents BhEzHeRREEE
acquired HE 24,755
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B 5% R A& M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——4F+_-H=+4+—HI F/F

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35. IWIEKHB AT (&)

(a) Easy Time (Continued) (a) Easy Time (%)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Easy Time
is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the
distribution of the Group’s products in the new markets
and the anticipated future operating synergies from the
combination.

Easy Time contributed approximately HK$2,080,000 to
the Group's profit for the period between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2011, total Group turnover for the year would have been
approximately HK$309,948,000, and loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$319,942,000. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of the turnover and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2011, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

W Easy Time MEELZEEBHEERH
REFMSESEASEER 2 HHAR
e RTEEAE HHERA R REE 7
[] 2 E

RIERBEREBHR 2 BARA -
Easy Time¥ A & B &7 i s F1) 405 &
2,080,0007T °

WKEEER_T—F—HA—H
K AEEFANRE L] ERL
75 309,948,0007T ' LA R FREEA]
B A8 %319,942,0007T ° fEE B R
EBHHAA WIHERRUBEHEE-Z
——F—A—HEXNBERLT A&
B ERRG S X REEEED
BE MR BIERARRER ZTEA




156 China Post E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2011

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% & M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 # 2 —F——F+=-H=+—HIFZF

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. WEBMIE A (&)
(b) Charmston (b) #t&EF

On 30 June 2011, the Group acquired 51% of the RZZE——FRA=1TH x&EEK

issued share capital of Charmston for a consideration of BHRHCBITRANZ51%#Eas KB

HK$42,500,000. The consideration was satisfied by the %75 ¥42,500,0007T ° AN A &) LA T 1)

Company in the following manner: ARZMARAE -

—  cash of HK$12,500,000 upon signing of the sale and — IR&E¥12,500,000REEE
purchase agreement; EV RSN

- cash of HK$2,500,000 upon completion of the — IR&/E#2,500,000cAUEEEE
acquisition; SERC RS2 A

- issuance of convertible bonds with principal - RRBEETKEZETASHE
amount of HK$12,500,000 upon completion of the 475 #12,500,0007T K 7] 2 A% (&
acquisition; and %5 Kk

- issuance of 53,956,835 ordinary shares of the — RUEE B BRLAEE 1T E 5 #£0.278
Company at an issue price of HK$0.278 totalling JC#£4753,956,835/% AN A 7] &
HK$15,000,000 at the date of acquisition. BT 425 FE A 15,000,000

7TE o

Charmston was principally engaged in investment BN T EZEBRREER  HIWE

holding, with its subsidiaries engaged in the trading and N A E [Tonino Lamborghini | & &

retail of apparel and related accessories under the brand ZRERBALHNESGRTE -

name of “Tonino Lamborghini”.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Charmston (Continued)

A _E—— A=+ —HIFE

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Charmston acquired as at its date of acquisition, which
has no significant difference from its carrying amount, is

as follows:

Net assets acquired:

Club debenture

Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposits

Bank and cash balances
Trade and other payables
Bank and other loans
Finance lease payables
Employee benefit obligations
Current tax liabilities

Net assets
Non-controlling interests
Goodwill

Total consideration

Total consideration, satisfied by:

Cash

Fair value of convertible bonds
(note 27)

Fair value of ordinary shares
(note 32(d))

Net cash outflow arising on
acquisition:

Cash consideration paid
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

THEH (ER) ARAR —B——5FH§

35. WEEME LR (&)

(b) #E (&)

P BB ET ey I B B & M B BRI
BHBMNQFEE T A FEERR
BWEERER:

WHE 2 FEEE HK$000
BT T
@ AT {E 5 205
YE = MR 3,021
FE 23,020
JEUL B 5 K oA BR 5R 34,645
BEIRHIRITER 6,241
RITRIR e &ETF 14,367
BT E S KR EAMERR (22,743)
RITREMEE (33,226)
EAmERS (286)
EERAMEMS (139)
BNEAfiTE & & (3,369)
BEFE 21,736
FEIZE AR R o (10,852)
SRS 28,793
BRE 39,677
RRE UATHFAZA:
Be 15,000
AR (E A N T 1E (Ht27)
13,238
B A B (A 7E32(d))
11,439
39,677
WEEE A MR e R FE:
BMIRENRE (15,000)
BWEBzIRE RIS EEEH 14,367
(633)
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Charmston (Continued)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Charmston
is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the
distribution of the Group’s products in the new markets
and the anticipated future operating synergies from the
combination.

Charmston contributed approximately HK$9,041,000 to
the Group's profit for the period between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2011, total Group turnover for the year would have been
approximately HK$333,316,000, and loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$332,408,000. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of the turnover and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2011, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As referred to in note 11 to the financial statements, on 9
December 2011, the Group discontinued its Ceramic blanks
and ferrules business at the time of the disposal of the
Opcom Group. At the same time, the Company entered into
a deed of waiver with Opcom and an independent third party
for the waiver of an amount due to the Opcom Group of
approximately HK$7,848,000 and an amount due from the
independent third party of approximately HK$78,943,000.

35.

36.

WEEH B QR (&)
(b) #¥ (&)

WEEESHEL 2 BB A BRREN™T
59 SHAN SR B 2 an 2 TR A BRI BE 77 A
K IEHR B B 7 B R RAE & 1 (R 3%

REBEHEREHRZHRA -
GRE H A K B B8 8BS R A8
9,041,0007T ©

W EEER _T——F—H—H3=x
B AEEFRNBEETE I ERNE
#333,316,0007T * LA & £ A B 18 A 3=
#4975 %332,408,0007C ° & & BHE
S WHERTKESEE S ——
F-—A—HBEERMBERLT AEEA
ERBECEXERECEXENIE
2 I RIERARRER ZTEAl

HEHE QT

B BHRERMF L R ——F
+ZANHE  AEER HEOpcomE B R
ERIEEEEERM REBZER - RItRA
B ANEBEEOpcomA R —RBBILE=H
RIS T B B2 IR LA FA 2 FE 1 Opcom &= B 49
V& £7,848,0007T 2 SRIB LA & FE MR 3% 4 B8 3L
=7 #)75¥78,943,0007T Z FNIA °
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEKMB AR (&)

REERHZAEFENT

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$’000

B TF T
Property, plant and equipment M HE REE 19,466
Inventories 58 10,413
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 & B th kI8 121,216
Due from immediate holding company ~ FEUR & B2 I A A 7,807
Bank and cash balances RITRIA S EH 50
Trade and other payables FER 8B 5 K E M FRIR (103,165)
Due to a fellow subsidiary R IEEL NG 1)
Current tax liabilities BVHAT I B & (29,465)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEBE (3,601)
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE 22,720
Release of translation reserve R Bl X B (4,855)
Direct cost to the disposal HEZHEEKRA 1,028
Waiver of amount due to A & (< Opcom = [ 2 k18

the Opcom Group (7,848)

Waiver of other receivables B 5 L B W IR 78,943
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENRBARZER (44,988)
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BRE-UREZN 45,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEAMBSRAFRE:
Cash consideration received EHEeRE 45,000
Cash paid for direct cost BEXNEEKAZIRS (1,028)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRERREEEIEE (50)

43,922
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37.

38.

PENDING LITIGATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following pending litigation:

On 19 January 2004, a winding up petition was filed
against the Company by certain ex-senior employees of the
Group claiming for payment in the sum of approximately
HK$594,000 from the Company in respect of an award/
order dated 20 October 2003 granted by the Labour Tribunal
in respect of the severance and bonus dispute between
the Company and the ex-senior employees. The unsettled
amounts of approximately HK$594,000 were fully accrued in
trade and other payables during the year ended 31 December
2005 and remain outstanding as at 31 December 2011 and
2010. The case has been ceased to be active since the year
ended 31 December 2005.

LEASE COMMITMENTS
(@) Lease commitments
At 31 December 2011 the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

Within one year —F A

In the second to fifth years inclusive 2 —FZEF HF
(BREEEMF)

After five years hFi%

BE—F——F+=A=f—AULFE

37.

38.

AROR R

RBERR AEBEZ ARRFRMOT :

R-_ZEZEME—-—A+NAB RAEEE T
SRBEREHEARRZERERE
BEERHER _ZE=F+A-tTHRA
ARAHEZEI S ABEM CERERE
MAmER 28R HL MAARIRE
#)78 #594,000T c ZE R EBE 2 BA B
#594,000tERBE_ZEZTRAF+ A
=+ RALEFERHSFAE S REMER
R KR ZE——FR T -TF+=
A=+—RAMREH ZRXHEBHE_Z
ERF+_A=1+—RHLFERLETHE
Eﬁo

HERE
(a) H&EAA
R-—ZE——F+=—_HA=+—H ERN

ARRDAIFHECEHEREEEN
T

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—¥--% -T-FF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT EBETT
21,923 1.780
27,114 546
2,558 _
51,595 2326
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38. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(0

Lease commitments (Continued)

Operating lease payments represented rental payable by
the Group for certain of its offices, stores and director’s
quarter. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 3
months to 7.3 years.

Licensing arrangements

At 31 December 2011 the Group had total distribution
right fee income receivables in respect of licensing
arrangements of approximately HK$8,535,000 (2010:
HK$Nil) which were receivable within one year.

Royalty payments

At 31 December 2011 the total future minimum royalty
payments under a non-cancellable contract are payable as

follows:
Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2 —FZF HF

(BREEME)

A _E—— A=+ —HIFE

THEH (ER) ARAR —B——5FH§

38. HERE (&)

(a)

(b) #

(c)

HEEME (&)

KEHENRIEAEERE THA
EERAREEREERENZES - HE
HE AN TMEAR73F -

RZZFE——F+=ZH=+—8 &&
EEMCET IR BN HER
WL A 4858 4975 #8,535,0000T (=T —
THEBETT)W AR —FRUKRE -

ENE
R-B——F+-A=+—RH Ef

AR AHHEEOZENEREARE
R

2011 2010
—g--5& —2-ETF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT EHFTT
5,351 =
19,483 =

24,834 =
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with its related parties during the
year:

Advertising and media related service
income received from a
related company

39.

Loan interest expense paid to a EXN—REERF]
related company EXRFEXZ

Advertising and referral fee paid to a EXN—K@AEAA
related company BEERNEE

A director, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is a director of the related
companies.

40. CHANGE OF NAME

At an extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of
the Company held on 19 December 2011, a special resolution
was passed to change the name of the Company from China
Post E-Commerce (Holdings) Limited to Luxey International
(Holdings) Limited. Up to the date of this report, the
application for change of name is still in progress.

41. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2012.

40.

41.

BEALRS

BRUMBHRRZTREBEZZEFHEALRS
REESRIN REBRFRAREBEALTZ
PR

RN —REEQRIERES M
RREA R lRISUA

2011 2010
—g-—F  -T-2F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT
3,425 2,565

- 194

- 81

EXRRELERRETHERRZES

ERREER

R-F——F+ A+ NhARTZARF
BRFHAE L —ARIARRERR
MRARRIz ZBETFHER (28k) GR
RAIERABEREEAR (ER)BRAF H
EAREAH BREWZRFNERE
m o

RER IR K

B REE RN —_E——F=H -+ ALK
EECUENMIRETE-
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The following is a summary of the published results and of the ¥z T3 EATEiz EEMBRAEED T3 %
assets and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set outin  EANREENMBEZMBUT
the note below:

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t—-HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
“BE——-f CZET-TF ZIZTTNF ZTTN\HF TTLF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BT T BT T BETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(R&75) (fe&51) (LBE7) (LmE5)

RESULTS £
Turnover L]
Continuing operations FEREER 164,398 6,231 2,287 - -
Discontinued operation ERIEREER 90,149 91,676 83,830 78,644 52,612
254,547 97,907 86,117 78,644 52,612

Loss before tax BREAIEE (288,388) (61,657) (7,959) (25,407) (8,518)
Income tax expense FristiE A (2,587) - - - -
Loss for the year from RERBREEK L

continuing operations FEEBR (290,975) (61,657) (7,959) (25,407) (8,518)
(Loss)/profit from discontinued KRB E 4R IFEEEHK 2

operation (B8),/&H (47,240) 4,387 4,073 (2,080) 4,180
Loss for the year FEFR (338,215) (57,270) (3,886) (27,487) (4,338)
Attributable to: THALEMN:
Owners of the Company ARRHEBA (338,527) (55,196) (2,821) (27,279) (4,338)
Non-controlling interests R 312 (2,074) (1,065) (208) =

(338,215) (57,270) (3,886) (27,487) (4,338)
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At 31 December

W+t=—A=+—-H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
- _Z-TF _TTNF _ZTT\& _TTLF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT JBEFT BT BT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER

Non-current assets EREEE 498,073 114,292 197,467 88,219 91,905
Current assets TEEE 217,979 148,302 117,290 92,096 55,734
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (40,527) (6,869) (15,147) (26,867) (39,273)
Current liabilities mEaE (154,829) (57,392) (57,912) (37,633) (36,172)
Net assets EEFE 520,696 198,333 241,698 115,815 72,194
Attributable to: THATES:
Owners of the Company KABEE A 514,655 203,628 245,565 115,773 72,194
Non-controlling interests LR I 6,041 (5,295) (3,867) 42 =
520,696 198,333 241,698 115,815 72,194

Amounts disclosed in the summary financial information for prior B BERBEFFAFEERATFE 2 8HEELE
years have been restated to reflect the discontinued operation as %1 * AR BREF F5 3R R M sE 11 ATl 2 B AR IE4E &
described in note 11 to the financial statements. ES L
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